
 

Dulwich Community Council 
 

Tuesday July 7 2009 
7.00 pm 

Herne Hill Baptist Church, Half Moon Lane, London SE24 9HU 
 
 

Membership 
 

Reserves 
 

Councillor James Barber 
Councillor Toby Eckersley 
Councillor Robin Crookshank Hilton 
(Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Michelle Holford 
Councillor Kim Humphreys 
Councillor Jonathan Mitchell 
Councillor Lewis Robinson 
Councillor Richard Thomas 
Councillor Nick Vineall (Chair) 
 

  
 

 
 
INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
 

 
Access to information 

You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and reports on this agenda as 
well as the background documents used in the preparation of these reports. 

Babysitting/Carers allowances 

If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look after your children, an 
elderly dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you could attend this meeting, 
you may claim an allowance from the council.  Please collect a claim form at the meeting. 

Access 

The council is committed to making its meetings accessible.  Further details on building 
access, translation, provision of signers etc for this meeting are on the council’s web site: 
www.southwark.gov.uk or please contact the person below. 

Contact 
 on 020 7525 7234  or email: beverley.olamijulo@southwark.gov.uk   
Webpage:  
 
 
Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting 

Open Agenda



Annie Shepperd 
Chief Executive 
Date: June 29 2009 
 

 
 



 

Dulwich Community Council 
 

Tuesday July 7 2009 
7.00 pm 

 
 

Order of Business 
 
 

Item No. Title Page No. 
 

 INFORMATION TO MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
 

 

 Access to information 
 
You may request copies of minutes and reports on this agenda. 
 

For a large print copy of papers, please 
telephone 020 7525 7187. 
 
Deputations 
 
For information on deputations please ask the clerk for the relevant hand-
out. 
 
Carers’ allowances 
 
If you are a Southwark resident and have paid someone to look after your 
children, an elderly dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you 
can attend this meeting, you may claim an allowance from the council. 
Please collect a claim from the clerk at the meeting. 
 
Transport assistance for disabled members of the public 
 
Members of the public with a disability who wish to attend community 
council meetings and who require transport assistance in order to access 
the meeting, are requested to call the meeting clerk. The clerk will arrange 
for a driver to collect the person and provide return transport after the 
meeting. There will be no charge to the person collected. Please note that 
it is necessary to call the clerk as far in advance as possible and at least 
three working days before the meeting. 
 
Wheelchair access 
 
Wheelchair access is available. For further information please call the 
meeting clerk. 
 

 

 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 

 



 
 
 
 

Item No. Title Page No. 
 
 

1. INTRODUCTION AND WELCOME [CHAIR] 
 

 

2. APOLOGIES 
 

 

3. DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS 
 

 

4. ITEMS OF BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT 
 

 

 MATTERS FROM PREVIOUS MEETING(S) 
 

 

5. CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

 

6. MINUTES FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 

2 - 20 

 Minutes to be agreed from the previous meeting held on June 3, 2009  
 

 

7. MATTERS ARISING FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING NOT COVERED 
ELSEWHERE ON THE AGENDA 

 

 

 MAIN BUSINESS 
 

 

8. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS (IF ANY)   (7.10PM) 
 

 

9. CROSS BOUNDARY ISSUES NOT COVERED ELSEWHERE ON THE 
AGENDA  (7.10PM) 

 

 

10. REPORTS FROM THE POLICE (SAFER NEIGHBOURHOOD TEAMS) 
AND DULWICH COMMUNITY WARDENS   (7.15PM) 

 

 

 • SNTs’ to provide updates on ward panel priorities and  
general policing issues which can be raised at this point in the meeting 

 
• Wardens to provide updates on any community safety issues 
 

 

11. DULWICH PRIDE OF PLACE  (7.25PM) 
 

 

 Introduction from the Chair (Cllr Nick Vineall) and  
Presentation from the Chief Executive (Annie Shepperd) 
 

 

12. SOAP BOX SESSION / PUBLIC QUESTION & ANSWER TIME  
(7.45PM) 

 

 



 
 
 
 

Item No. Title Page No. 
 
 

 Opportunity for members of the public to raise issues and 
ask questions on matters not covered on the agenda 
 

 

13. DULWICH SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENT (SPD) AND 
CORE STRATEGY  (7.55PM) 

 

 

 Feed back from Officers including details as to high density developments 
in the present urban zone 
 

 

 BREAK  (8.05PM) 
 

 

 Police officers and community wardens are available during the  
break to discuss individual cases   
 

 

14. FUNDING FOR TRANSPORT IMPROVEMENTS IN SOUTHWARK - 
CONSULTATION WITH COMMUNITY COUNCILS   (8.15PM) 

 

21 - 32 

 Officer presentation followed by general discussion to cover some of the 
topics mentioned below: 
 
• Scope for improving cross borough bus services 
• Ways to improve public transport  (e.g. better public transport for 

residents on the Kingswood Estate to travel to neighbouring areas) 
• The 42 bus route extension 
• Raised zebra crossing on Lordship Lane outside Somerfields  
• Speed cameras  
• Street electric car points  
• Car sharing and car parking spaces reserved for them 
 
Documents attached – the new implementation process and 
comments from the Dulwich Society 
 
 

 

15. MEMBERS' DECISIONS  (8.50PM) 
 

33 - 38 

 Members to consider the report below and any follow up actions or 
decisions, which have arisen from the previous meeting or items, 
discussed during the meeting 
 
• Report on local parking amendments 
 

 

 ANY OTHER DECISIONS NOT COVERED IN THE MEETING. 
 

 

16. CLOSING COMMENTS BY THE CHAIR  (9.00PM) 
 

 

 DATES OF MEETINGS 
 

 



 
 
 
 

Item No. Title Page No. 
 
 

 Date    Venue 
Main meetings 
Tue 22 Sept 2009 
Wed 28 Oct 2009 
Mon 14 Dec 2009 
Wed 3 Feb   2010 
Thur 25 Mar 2010 
 
Planning meetings: 
Thur 9 July 2009 
Mon 7 Sept 2009 
Thur 1 Oct 2009  
Tue 10 Nov 2009  
Thur 3 Dec 2009  
Wed 13 Jan 2010  
Mon 22 Feb 2010  
Thur 18 Mar 2010 
 

 
Herne Hill Baptist Church  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Herne Hill Baptist Church  
Christ Church  
Herne Hill Baptist Church  
Dulwich Library  
Herne Hill Baptist Church  
Dulwich Library  
Herne Hill Baptist Church 
To be confirmed 

 
 

 

 DULWICH COMMUNITY COUNCIL MEMBERSHIP 
 

 

 Councillor Nick Vineall (Chair) Councillor Robin Crookshank Hilton (Vice
Chair) 

Councillor James Barber Councillor Toby Eckersley 
Councillor Michelle Holford Councillor Kim Humphreys 
Councillor Jonathan Mitchell Councillor Lewis Robinson 
Councillor Richard Thomas 
 

 

 DISTRIBUTION LIST 
 

 

 
Date:  June 29 2009 
 



 
 
 
Language Needs  
If you want information on the Community Councils translated into your language please telephone 020 
7525  7187. To inform us of any special needs or requirements, such as transport or signer/interpreter, 
please telephone 020 7525 7187. 

                                              Bengali                                                                            
    
Kendi dilinizde Toplum meclisleri hakkønda bilgi almak için 020 7525 7187’nolu telefonu arayønøz. 
Özel gereksinimlerinizi bize bildirmek için 020 7525 7187’nolu telefonu çeviriniz.  Turkish 

 
 
Haddii aad doonayso warbixin ku saabsan qoraalka Kawnsalkada Bulshada oo ku turjuman af 
Soomaali fadlan tilifoon u dir 020 7525 7187.Si aad noogu sheegto haddii aad leedahay baahi gaar 
ama wax gooni kuu ah sida gaadiid, af celiyaha dadka indha la’ fadlan tilifooni 020 7525 7187.  
            Somali 

 

 
Mandarin 

 
Se você quiser informações nos conselhos comunitários traduzidas em sua língua por favor ligue para 
020 7525 7187. Para-nos informar de quaisquer necessidades especiais ou requisitos, tipo trasporte, 
linguagem dos sinais/ intérprete, por favor ligue para 020 7525 7187.   Portuguese 
 
 
Si vous désirer avoir l'information sur les Conseils de la Communauté (Community Councils) traduite 
en votre langue téléphonez SVP au 020 7525 7187. Pour nous informer de tout besoin ou condition 
spéciale, telles que le transport ou le signataire / interprète, téléphonez SVP au 020 7525 7187.  
                                  French 
     
Si precisa información sobre los departamentos sociales (Community Councils) traducida a su idioma, 
por favor llame al número de teléfono 020 7525 7187. Si tiene necesidades o requisitos específicos, 
como es transporte especial o un intérprete, por favor llame al número de teléfono 020 7525 7187. 
            Spanish 
              
Lati bẽre fun itumọ irohin nipa Council agbegbe re (Community Council) ni ede abini rẹ, jọwọ pe 
telifoonu 020 7525 7187. Lati jẹ ki a mọ nipa iranlọwọ tabi idi pato, gẹgẹbi ọkọ (mọto) tabi olutumọ, 
jọwọ pe telifoonu 020 7525 7187.        Yoruba 
                 
  

 

020 7525 7187 

020 7525 7187 

020 7525 7187 

 

020 7525 7187 

Agenda Annex
1



(Minutes to be agreed at the next meeting if accurate)   

Date Wednesday June 3 2009  

Venue Christ Church, 263 Barry Road, London  
SE22 0JT 

Start time 7.00pm 

Finish time 10.05pm 

In attendance Cllrs, Nick Vineall (Chair), Robin Crookshank Hilton (Vice 
chair), Toby Eckersley, Michelle Holford, Kim Humphreys, 
Jonathan Mitchell and Lewis Robinson.  

Absent Cllrs James Barber and Richard Thomas 

Apologies received Cllrs James Barber and Richard Thomas 

Cllrs, Kim Humphreys and Michelle Holford submitted their 
apologies for lateness  

Urgent items The chair agreed to accept as late and urgent items the 
following: 

• Sports & Physical Activity Strategy (Tim Hetherington) 
• Local parking amendments – considered under item 

14, Members’ decisions.  

Members’ interests 
and dispensations 

None disclosed.  

Agenda Item 6
2



Public questions raised 

Q1 Mrs Palmer submitted the following public questions: 
Is there anything the Community Council could do to help improve community 
relations between ethnic minorities and the host nation? The BNP feeds off 
misunderstandings. 

A1 Chair:  This could be considered as a separate agenda item for a future DCC 
meeting. 

Cllr Mitchell: East Dulwich Community centre meet up for a wide range of 
activities and urged people to come along to attend the ‘Mark of Faith ‘ day taking 
place shortly. 
  

Q2 It is dangerous attempting to cross the road at the junction of East Dulwich Grove 
and Lordship Lane.  Could traffic lights be placed there? 
  

A2 Cllr Mitchell:  ED Cllrs considered traffic lights at the crossing of East Dulwich – 
but are of the view that traffic lights would not help that junction.  We might have 
to look at other possibilities having discussed this with officers in traffic.  As long 
as traffic is forced to turn left in East Dulwich then the junction is manageable in 
their view.   

Q3 Melbourne Grove / Bassano Street overhanging branches are a health and safety 
hazard.  

A3 Cllr Mitchell agreed to speak to Mrs Palmer directly about this issue. 

Q4 Melbourne Grove/junction with Colwell Rd.  Cars speeding unaware of the curve 
in the road at that junction are dangerous? 

A4 Cllr Mitchell: Looking at various options  - i.e. installing a second pedestrian 
crossing along Lordship Lane (near Somerfields) which he thinks is needed 

Q5 Do small children and school children need to be taught kerb drill? 

A5 Cllr Mitchell agreed to speak to Mrs Palmer directly about this issue. 

3



Summary of the decision or action 

The following is a summary of the decisions and actions taken at this meeting.   

The item number relates to the agenda item number where possible. 

Clarification or queries on any points should be raised in the first instance with Beverley 
Olamijulo on 020 7525 7234

Item no. Summary of the actions and Decisions Action 
by  

5. Chair’s announcements  

The following announcements were noted: 

Notice of meeting - Southwark Police & Community Consultative 
Group (SPCCG) will have their public meeting on Sept 29 2009 
between 7.00pm until 9.00pm at the Baptist Hall in Half Moon 
Lane. SE24 (corner of Winterbrook Road). 
 The new borough commander for Southwark, Chief 
Superintendent Wayne Chance will be there to take questions 
and all DCC attendees are invited. 

Topics of discussion include Dulwich & Herne Hill community 
safety issues.  This special invitation has been extended to the 
three Dulwich Safer Neighbourhood Ward panel members, who 
will have the opportunity to discuss any concerns with Mr Chance 
and his senior police management team.   

Contact the SPCCG Chair on 020 7274 9554 for further info. 

Deputy Mayor 2009/10 
The chair congratulated Cllr Robin Crookshank Hilton (vice chair) 
for her new role as deputy Mayor of Southwark. 

6. Minutes from the previous meeting held on 29 April 2009 

DECISION: 
The Minutes of the Dulwich CC meeting held on 29 April 2009 
were approved as an accurate record of the meeting.  The Chair 
signed the Minutes. 

DCC 
Cllrs 

4



7. Matters not covered elsewhere on the agenda 

Tim Hetherington presented the Sports & Physical Activity 
Strategy which is being presented to all Community Council 
areas.  Further information will be given in the Take Note: 
http://www.southwark.gov.uk/YourCouncil/communitycouncils/YourCom
munityCouncil  

8. Deputations /Petitions  
None were received.  

9. Cross boundary issues  
None were identified. 

10. Reports from the Police safer neighbourhood teams and & 
Dulwich community update on community safety issues

DCC received updates from the Safer Neighbourhood Teams 
(SNTs) concerning policing matters, ward panel meetings and 
priorities for this month.  

College 
Sgt Warran outlined priorities for the ward  

Ward priorities
• Lordship Lane – opposite the Harvester and Croxted Rd area  
• Youth engagement  
• Tackling anti social behaviour on all Housing Estates 
• Two individuals arrested for robbery offences  

Sgt Warran reported that PC Deacon is due to leave their SNT to 
take on other projects.  PC Wilmot will be taking over his role in 
the the meantime.   

• SNT organised a weapons free day on the Croxted Rd Estate  

• Park Hall Rd – regular patrols taking place because many  
shops in the area have been victims of crime  

• Three arrests were made this month for offences relating to 
grievous bodily harm, serious assault and one with an Asbo 

East Dulwich 
Sgt Jackson presented ward priorities and thanked DCC 
members for awarding funding to reduce crime.  Sgt Jackson 
urged people to view the Met Police website which details all 
crime reports /statistics all wards in the Borough - unfortunately 

5



the mapping has not taken into account the boundary changes. 

Ward priorities
• Youth engagement 
• Dulwich park – reducing robberies 
• Tackling anti social behaviour – Barry Road and Friern Road 
• Motor Vehicle crime – 1 suspect was arrested  

Cllr Mitchell referred to previous CGS monies being spent on 
alert boxes, metal detectors and speed cameras to address 
motor vehicle crime in the area and cross border crime. He said 
East Dulwich ward councillors continue to work closely with the 
neighbouring ward boundaries particularly where there is a 
crossover of wards – East Dulwich and Village. 

Village 
Sgt Jenkinson presented   

Ward priorities
• Tackling robbery across the ward 
• Youth engagement and anti social behaviour across the ward 
• Motor vehicle crime 

Sgt Jenkinson also addressed issues relating to: 
Crimes that are not adequately logged as a reported crime. 
Dealing with families and young people who are persistent 
victims of muggings and the under reporting of such crimes. 
Village SNT have been dealing with the young people concerned. 
In May, seven street robberies were reported and most police 
operations are done on intelligence led policing. 

Sgt Jenkinson agreed to ask Victim Support officers to attend 
local schools on ‘safety awareness’ for students particularly for 
those in Year 11. 

Community Wardens 
Sue Hunter – area manager for the Wardens in Dulwich and 
Camberwell gave a presentation at the meeting outlining the 
tasks set for this month they include: 

• Kingswood Estate 
• Vehicle crime 
• Burglary – did a lot of leafleting in Townley Street 
• Alleyn School – help with security 
• Currently have a full strength team of wardens 
• Sting operation – dog fouling in Melford Grove passage area 

6



and surrounding roads 
• Weapons amnesty 
• Increase patrols around the Herne Hill area due to large 

groups of girls gathering  
• Priority patrols around Lytcott Grove and Melford Grove  area  
• Deal with underage drinking 
• Wardens now on bikes during patrols etc    

11. 
Executive 
decision 

Announcement of successful Cleaner Greener Safer (CGS) 
bids  

DECISION: 
DCC agreed to fund the CGS projects listed on the page 
attached.  

      Successful CGS schemes  
      overleaf 

12. 
Executive 
decision 

Announcement of successful Community Fund Bids  

DECISION: 
DCC agreed to: 
1.  Accept a late CF application from LL T&RA. 

2.  Treat the Community fund bid by ED SNUB as a bid 
 under both CF and CGS since it contains both income and 
 capital elements.  

3. Reallocate £6,950 from underspends on East Dulwich  
 projects for previous CGS years. 

4. Reallocate £6,250 from underspends on College 
 projects from previous years. 

In addition DCC agreed to fund the listed projects below from the 
Dulwich CCF 2009: 

     Successful Community Fund Bids  
     Overleaf 

DCC 
Cllrs 

14. Dulwich Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) and Core 
Strategy – consultation  

Alison Squires from planning policy was present to introduce the 

7



SPD, Core Strategy, the officers’ presentation to written 
responses received and to address the specific issues that were 
raised at DCC on April 1 2009.   

Summary: 
The Core Strategy replaces the Southwark plan which is a 
strategic document for planning in the borough.  For example 
protecting conservation areas, traffic routes and housing etc. The 
SPD will provide further guidance on planning issues to 
determine a decision and setting new visions for Dulwich.  

There are 13 policies in the core strategy document that will 
cover transport accessibility, energy renewal etc and encourage 
community facilities in an area.  The affordable housing policy will 
encourage more family housing – i.e. more 3 or 4 beds due to 
demand. 

Alison urged people to go on the website www.southwark.gov.uk
for comments – the consultation is out until July 2009. Email 
Alison Squires at: alison.squires@southwark.gov.uk for queries. 

Officers then responded to questions on key issues – e.g.  
Suburban zones and urban zones. Maps outlining the zones will 
shortly be available on the Council’s website.  

As part of the consultation process the planning policy team will 
be running a workshop at the Dulwich Picture Gallery on July 7 
2009 between 12pm – 6pm.  

Both the Core Strategy and the Dulwich SPD have already been 
taken to Planning Committee and Executive and both approved 
for consultation. 

The next stages:  
The next stage for the Core Strategy will be to continue to consult 
on the document up to July 23 and then the comments we 
receive and further evidence we will collect will form the  
production of the submission/publications version of the Core 
Strategy.  

This will be taken to Planning Committee, Executive and Full 
council and if the Chair permits this will be presented again to  
Dulwich CC between November 2009 and January 2010. 

The next stage for the Dulwich SPD will be to look at all the 
representation received and change the SPD where needed. This 

8



will then be taken back to Planning Committee and Executive for 
adoption. 

DECISION: 
As the Dulwich Hospital site is currently designated in the 
Southwark Plan as a community hospital.  Officers need to clarify 
what is meant by this in terms of planning definitions and report  
this to the next meeting. 

The information included in this form, together with the attached notes, form the 
minutes from the above meeting and have been agreed as a true and accurate 
recording of that meeting. Any necessary amendments shall be detailed in the 
Summary of Actions held at the Town Hall by the relevant Community Councils 
Development Officer. 

Chair                                   Date

9



N
o

P
ro

p
o

sa
l N

am
e

W
ar

d
L

o
ca

ti
o

n
Id

ea
C

o
m

m
en

ts

1
01

99
0 

- 
D

aw
so

n 
H

ei
gh

ts
 

M
ak

eo
ve

r
A

ll 
D

ul
w

ic
h

D
aw

so
n 

H
ei

gh
ts

D
aw

so
n 

H
ei

gh
ts

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
a 

re
al

 v
ie

w
in

g 
ar

ea
 a

nd
 lo

ca
l 

at
tr

ac
tio

n.
 T

o 
m

ak
e 

th
is

 a
n 

at
tr

ac
tiv

e 
ar

ea
 w

ou
ld

 r
eq

ui
re

 a
 

m
ak

eo
ve

r 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

a 
ne

w
 p

at
h 

co
nn

ec
tin

g 
th

e 
tw

o 
be

nc
he

s 
to

 th
e 

tw
o 

zi
g 

za
gg

in
g 

pa
th

s,
 m

ak
in

g 
th

e 
tw

o 
be

nc
he

s 
a 

vi
ew

in
g 

ar
ea

 w
ith

 a
 m

ap
 s

ta
tin

g 
th

e 
vi

si
bl

e 
Lo

nd
on

 la
nd

m
ar

k.
 

C
re

at
e 

a 
gr

ee
n 

la
nd

m
ar

k 
an

d 
so

m
et

hi
ng

 to
 a

ttr
ac

t r
es

id
en

ts
 

to
 c

lim
b 

to
 th

e 
to

p 
of

 d
aw

so
n 

H
ei

gh
ts

. I
t w

ill
 im

pr
ov

e 
a 

lo
ca

l 
sp

ac
e 

m
ak

in
g 

it 
m

or
e 

at
tr

ac
tiv

e
   

   
   

   
   

 5
,0

00
 

 A
w

ar
d 

to
 g

o 
to

w
ar

ds
 fe

as
ib

ili
ty

 
st

ud
y 

or
 w

rit
in

g 
m

an
ag

em
en

t p
la

n.

2
01

99
9 

- 
00

00
 -

 B
ic

yc
lin

g 
B

er
m

on
ds

ey
/ C

yc
le

 S
ou

th
w

ar
k

A
ll 

D
ul

w
ic

h
E

ve
ry

w
he

re
 th

er
e 

is
 a

 r
oa

d
C

yc
le

 la
ne

s 
ev

er
yw

he
re

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
ro

ad
s.

 
0

3
02

00
0 

- 
00

00
 -

 V
ol

un
te

er
s 

in
 

A
ct

io
n 

in
 S

ou
th

w
ar

k
A

ll 
D

ul
w

ic
h

A
ll 

bo
ro

ug
h 

C
C

 a
re

as
 

T
he

 p
ro

je
ct

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
to

 w
or

k 
cl

os
el

y 
w

ith
 S

ou
th

w
ar

k 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
'F

rie
nd

s 
of

 G
ro

up
s'

 to
 id

en
tif

y 
a 

m
ax

im
um

 o
f 1

5 
si

te
s 

to
 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

lo
ca

l b
io

di
ve

rs
ity

 a
nd

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
th

e 
ec

ol
og

y 
of

 
gr

ee
n 

sp
ac

es
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h.

  V
ol

un
te

er
 C

en
tr

e 
S

ou
th

w
ar

k 
w

ou
ld

 p
ro

vi
de

 te
am

s 
of

 v
ol

un
te

er
s 

to
 c

ar
ry

 o
u 

th
e 

w
or

k,
 a

nd
 th

e 
fo

un
di

ng
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

us
ed

 to
 p

ur
ch

as
e 

pl
an

ts
, 

to
ol

s,
 to

ol
 s

to
ra

ge
.

0

4
02

00
3 

- 
C

yc
le

 S
at

ur
at

io
n 

at
 

S
ou

th
w

ar
k 

S
ch

oo
ls

A
ll 

D
ul

w
ic

h
A

ll 
S

ou
th

w
ar

k
T

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
m

uc
h 

im
pr

ov
ed

 c
yc

le
 p

ar
ki

ng
 a

t a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 
S

ou
th

w
ar

k 
sc

ho
ol

s 
w

ho
 a

sk
 fo

r 
it

0

5
02

00
4 

- 
Lo

ts
 M

or
e 

A
llo

tm
en

ts
A

ll 
D

ul
w

ic
h

A
ll 

S
ou

th
w

ar
k

T
he

re
's

 a
 b

ig
 s

ho
rt

ag
e 

of
 a

llo
tm

en
ts

 in
 S

ou
th

w
ar

k.
 T

hi
s 

pr
oj

ec
t w

ill
 id

en
tif

y 
un

de
ru

se
d 

sp
ac

es
 o

n 
ho

us
in

g 
es

ta
te

s 
an

d 
he

lp
 tu

rn
 t 

in
to

 a
llo

tm
en

ts
/n

at
ur

e 
ar

ea
s 

w
he

re
 p

eo
pl

e 
ca

n 
gr

ow
 v

eg
et

ab
le

s/
ke

ep
 b

ee
s/

en
co

ur
ag

e 
w

ild
lif

e.
0

6
02

00
5 

- 
 S

ou
th

w
ar

k 
C

yc
le

 
C

on
tr

af
lo

w
A

ll 
D

ul
w

ic
h

A
ll 

LB
 S

ou
th

w
ar

k
T

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
co

nt
ra

-f
lo

w
s 

do
w

n 
al

l o
ne

 w
ay

 s
tr

ee
ts

 in
 

S
ou

th
w

ar
k 

w
he

re
 th

at
 is

 p
os

si
bl

e
0

7
02

00
6 

- 
B

ik
e 

lo
ck

er
s 

fo
r 

S
ou

th
w

ar
k 

es
ta

te
s

A
ll 

D
ul

w
ic

h
A

ll 
LB

 S
ou

th
w

ar
k

T
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

ba
nk

s 
of

 1
0 

lo
ck

er
s 

at
 v

ar
io

us
 lo

ca
tio

ns
 in

 
S

ou
th

w
ar

k 
ho

us
in

g 
es

ta
te

s 
fo

r 
re

si
de

nt
s 

to
 p

ar
k 

th
ei

r 
bi

ke
s

0

8

02
01

9-
P

re
fo

rm
in

g 
A

rt
s 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
S

pa
ce

 a
t L

iv
es

ey
 

M
us

eu
m

 fo
r 

C
hi

ld
re

n
A

ll 
D

ul
w

ic
h

T
he

 L
iv

es
ey

 is
 b

as
ed

 a
t 6

82
 

O
ld

 K
en

t R
oa

d,
 S

E
15

 1
JF

; 
ho

w
ev

er
 th

is
 p

ro
je

ct
 w

ill
 

re
ac

h 
an

d 
en

ga
ge

 a
 fa

r 
w

id
er

 
co

m
m

un
ity

.  

T
o 

co
nd

uc
t a

 fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 s

tu
dy

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 a

 P
re

fo
rm

in
g 

A
rt

s 
E

du
ca

tio
n 

S
pa

ce
 a

t L
iv

es
ey

 M
us

eu
m

 fo
r 

C
hi

ld
re

n.
 T

hi
s 

pr
oj

ec
t w

ill
 c

re
at

e 
a 

hi
gh

 p
ro

fil
e 

cu
ltu

ra
l a

nd
 e

du
ca

tio
na

l 
fa

ci
lit

y 
/w

or
ks

ho
ps

 fo
r 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 a
nd

 th
ei

r 
fa

m
ili

es
 fr

om
 

ac
ro

ss
 S

ou
th

w
ar

k 
 B

et
w

ee
n 

£3
0,

00
0 

an
d 

£4
5,

00
0.

  M
in

im
um

 
es

tim
at

es
 fo

r 
fe

es
 fo

r 
A

rc
hi

te
ct

, S
tr

uc
tu

ra
l E

ng
in

ee
r,

 Q
ua

nt
ity

 
S

ur
ve

yo
rs

 fe
e,

 e
xp

en
se

s 
an

d 
di

sb
ur

se
m

en
ts

 a
pp

ro
x 

£2
0,

00
0;

 
C

on
su

lta
nt

/p
ro

je
ct

 m
an

ag
er

 to
 c

ar
ry

 o
ut

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n/
fu

nd
ra

is
in

g 
st

ra
te

gy
;  

fe
e 

ap
pr

ox
 £

10
,0

00
.  

 W
e 

w
ou

ld
 li

ke
 to

 a
sk

 e
ac

h 
of

 th
e 

re
le

va
nt

 C
om

m
un

ity
 C

ou
nc

ils
: 

P
ec

kh
am

, C
am

be
rw

el
l, 

N
un

he
ad

 a
nd

 P
ec

kh
am

 R
ye

, D
ul

w
ic

h 
an

d 
R

ot
he

rh
ith

e 
to

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

£6
,0

00
 a

nd
 £

9,
00

0 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
co

st
s 

of
 th

e 
ov

er
al

l p
ro

je
ct

.
   

   
   

   
   

 5
,0

00
 

9
02

05
8 

- 
C

om
m

un
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l F
un

d
A

ll 
D

ul
w

ic
h

A
cr

os
s 

th
e 

D
ul

w
ic

h 
C

om
m

un
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

ar
ea

, 
w

he
re

 p
ot

en
tia

l 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t 

ar
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d.

D
ul

w
ic

h 
C

om
m

un
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

co
ul

d 
ha

ve
 a

 s
pa

re
 p

ot
 o

f m
on

ey
 

th
at

 c
an

 b
e 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
by

 th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
to

 r
es

ol
ve

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l i
ss

ue
s.

 T
hi

s 
co

ul
d 

he
lp

 fu
rt

he
r 

em
po

w
er

  l
oc

al
 c

ou
nc

ill
or

s 
to

 a
ffe

ct
 p

os
iti

ve
 c

ha
ng

e 
lo

ca
lly

, 
al

so
 a

llo
w

s 
so

m
e 

is
su

es
 th

at
 m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
re

so
lv

ed
 e

ls
ew

he
re

. 
T

hi
s 

co
ul

d 
be

 li
nk

ed
 to

 th
e 

vi
su

al
 a

ud
its

 a
nd

 w
or

k 
of

 th
e 

A
re

a 
M

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 E
ng

ag
em

en
t O

ffi
ce

r 
fr

om
 th

e 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
an

d 
H

ou
si

ng
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t.
0

10
01

83
5 

- 
S

af
et

y 
F

or
 T

he
 B

lin
d

A
ll 

D
ul

w
ic

h
B

ra
db

ur
y 

O
ak

 H
ou

se
, 2

 -
 4

 
U

nd
er

hi
ll 

R
oa

d,
 S

E
22

 0
A

H

Im
pr

ov
e 

se
cu

rit
y 

fo
r 

th
e 

es
ta

bl
is

hm
en

t a
nd

 th
e 

in
cr

ea
se

 o
f 

sa
fe

ty
 m

ea
su

re
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

re
si

de
nt

. B
ra

db
ur

y 
O

ak
 H

ou
se

 is
 a

n 
ap

ar
tm

en
t b

ui
ld

in
g 

co
ns

is
tin

g 
of

 3
8 

ro
om

s,
 w

hi
ch

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 

ha
s 

oc
cu

pa
nt

s 
of

 3
6 

pe
op

le
. T

he
 r

es
id

en
ts

 o
f t

hi
s 

es
ta

bl
is

hm
en

t a
re

 b
lin

d 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 o
ld

 a
ge

 p
en

si
on

er
s,

 w
hi

ch
 

ha
s 

co
m

e 
un

de
r 

nu
m

er
ou

s 
at

te
m

pt
s 

of
 tr

es
pa

ss
in

g 
an

d 
bu

rg
la

rie
s.

 
   

   
   

   
   

 5
,0

00
 

aw
ar

d 
is

 c
on

di
tio

na
l o

n 
m

at
ch

ed
 

fu
nd

in
g 

fr
om

 B
ra

db
ur

y 
O

ak
 H

ou
se

10



11

01
77

6 
-B

ou
nd

ar
y 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 D

ul
w

ic
h 

U
pp

er
 W

oo
d 

N
at

ur
e 

R
es

er
ve

C
ol

le
ge

D
ul

w
ic

h 
U

pp
er

 W
oo

d 
N

at
ur

e 
R

es
er

ve
, F

ar
qu

ha
r 

R
oa

d,
 

S
E

19
 1

S
S

E
re

ct
io

n 
of

 2
m

 h
ig

h 
ra

ili
ng

s 
al

on
g 

th
e 

to
p 

bo
un

da
ry

 o
f 

D
ul

w
ic

h 
U

pp
er

 W
oo

d 
w

he
re

 it
 m

ee
ts

 C
ol

le
ge

 R
oa

d,
 p

la
nt

in
g 

of
 tr

ee
's

 (
W

hi
pp

s)
 a

nd
 tr

ee
 p

la
ni

ng
 a

nd
 id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

co
ur

se
 

(x
 6

 c
ou

rs
es

) 
an

d 
1m

 h
ig

h 
ra

ili
ng

s 
at

 S
pi

nn
ey

 G
ar

de
ns

0

12
19

36
 &

 1
96

0 
- 

C
ro

xt
ed

 R
oa

d 
C

om
m

un
ity

 O
rc

ha
rd

C
ol

le
ge

C
ro

xt
ed

 R
oa

d 
E

st
at

e

T
o 

gr
ow

 a
 c

om
m

un
ity

 o
rc

ha
rd

 b
y 

pl
an

tin
g 

fr
ui

t a
nd

 n
ut

 
be

ar
in

g 
tr

ee
s 

on
 C

ro
xt

ed
 R

oa
d 

es
ta

te
. T

o 
en

ga
ge

 r
es

id
en

ts
 

in
 c

om
m

un
ity

 d
ay

s 
fo

r 
tr

ee
 p

la
nt

in
g,

 fr
ui

t h
ar

ve
st

in
g 

an
d 

ta
st

in
g.

 
0

13

01
96

1 
- 

A
lle

y 
se

cu
rit

y 
fo

r 
M

el
fo

rd
 R

oa
d 

an
d 

Lo
rd

sh
ip

 
La

ne
C

ol
le

ge

B
et

w
ee

n 
48

7 
an

d 
48

9 
Lo

rd
sh

ip
 L

an
e 

(b
y 

ol
d 

fe
nc

e 
po

st
s)

T
o 

in
st

al
l a

 s
ec

ur
ity

 g
at

e 
in

 th
e 

al
le

y 
be

hi
nd

 L
or

ds
hi

p 
La

ne
 

sh
op

s 
an

d 
M

el
fo

rd
 R

oa
d.

   
   

   
   

   
 8

,0
00

 

14

01
96

7 
- 

E
co

lo
gi

ca
l 

en
ha

nc
em

en
t -

 S
yd

en
ha

m
 H

ill
 

E
st

at
e

C
ol

le
ge

V
ar

io
us

 a
re

as
 o

f S
yd

en
ha

m
 

H
ill

 E
st

at
e 

bu
t e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 
be

hi
nd

 N
or

th
cr

of
t F

la
ts

H
ed

ge
 P

la
nt

in
g 

- 
at

 to
p 

of
 e

st
at

e 
by

 S
yd

en
ha

m
 H

ill
 W

oo
ds

,  
P

la
nt

 tr
ee

s 
x5

 E
re

ct
 s

ec
ur

e 
ga

te
 S

ta
g 

be
et

le
 lo

gg
er

ie
s,

 e
re

ct
 

ba
t a

nd
 b

ird
 b

ox
.

   
   

   
   

  2
0,

00
0 

15

01
97

6 
- 

A
 'w

ic
ke

t' 
fe

nc
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

C
ric

ke
t C

lu
b 

on
 D

ul
w

ic
h 

C
om

m
on

C
ol

le
ge

B
ou

nd
ar

y 
lin

e 
of

 S
tr

ea
th

am
 

an
d 

M
ar

lb
or

ou
gh

 C
ric

ke
t 

C
lu

b 
( 

ab
ou

t 6
0 

m
et

er
s)

 w
ith

 
pa

ve
m

en
t a

lo
ng

 S
ou

th
 

C
irc

ul
ar

, o
pp

os
ite

 th
e 

H
ar

ve
st

er
 P

ub
 

T
o 

re
pl

ac
e 

th
e 

un
at

tr
ac

tiv
e 

br
ok

en
 d

ow
n 

w
ire

 m
es

h 
fe

nc
e 

an
d 

co
nc

re
te

 p
os

ts
 w

ith
 a

 d
ur

ab
le

 a
nd

 s
tr

on
gl

y 
co

ns
tr

uc
te

d 
fe

nc
e 

of
 h

ar
dw

oo
d 

tim
be

r 
po

st
s,

 r
ai

ls
 a

nd
 p

al
in

gs
.

   
   

   
   

   
 5

,0
00

 

th
e 

aw
ar

d 
is

 fo
r 

50
%

 o
f r

eq
ue

st
 

an
d 

is
 c

on
di

tio
na

l o
n 

m
at

ch
 

fu
nd

in
g 

be
in

g 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
S

tr
ea

th
am

 &
 M

ar
lb

or
ou

gh
 C

ric
ke

t 
C

lu
b 

or
 D

ul
w

ic
h 

S
oc

ie
ty

16
01

99
7 

- 
C

ol
le

ge
 W

ar
d 

C
rim

e 
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

F
un

d
C

ol
le

ge
C

ol
le

ge
 W

ar
d

E
as

t D
ul

w
ic

h 
ha

s 
ha

d 
a 

C
G

S
 c

rim
e 

re
du

ct
io

n 
fu

nd
 w

hi
ch

 h
as

 
ov

er
 a

 1
00

0 
pr

op
er

ty
 m

ar
ki

ng
 k

its
 w

hi
ch

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

pu
rc

ha
se

d 
fo

r 
ho

m
es

 a
nd

 s
ch

oo
ls

. T
hi

s 
ha

s 
re

su
lte

d 
in

 a
 

30
%

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 b
ur

gl
ar

ie
s.

 C
ol

le
ge

 w
ar

d 
bu

rg
la

ry
 r

at
es

 fo
r 

th
e 

la
st

 1
2 

m
on

th
s 

ar
e 

14
.6

7/
10

00
 r

es
id

en
ts

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 th
e 

Lo
nd

on
 a

ve
rg

ae
 o

f 1
2.

65
. T

he
se

 w
ill

 b
en

ef
it 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

an
d 

m
ak

e 
th

e 
ar

ea
 s

af
er

 b
y 

re
du

ci
ng

 c
rim

e 
ra

te
s

0

17

02
01

3 
T

he
 g

ar
de

ni
ng

 p
ro

je
ct

: 
er

ec
t m

et
al

 r
ai

ls
 to

 e
nc

lo
se

 a
 

co
m

m
un

al
 g

ar
de

n 
ar

ea
 o

n 
K

in
gs

w
oo

d 
E

st
at

e
C

ol
le

ge

O
n 

th
e 

pa
ra

de
 (

in
 fr

on
t o

f 
sh

op
s)

 a
t S

ee
le

y 
D

riv
e 

on
 

K
in

gs
w

oo
d 

E
st

at
e,

 S
E

21
 

8Q
P

T
o 

re
su

rr
ec

t p
re

vi
ou

sl
y 

de
st

ro
ye

d 
ga

rd
en

 b
ed

s 
by

 p
re

ve
nt

in
g 

va
nd

al
s 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 th
e 

ar
ea

. I
n 

or
de

r 
to

 d
o 

th
is

 it
 is

 e
ss

en
tia

l 
th

at
 w

e 
er

ec
t m

et
al

 r
ai

lin
gs

 to
 m

ak
e 

an
 e

nc
lo

su
re

 (
w

ith
 

lo
ck

in
g 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
)

   
   

   
   

   
 4

,0
00

 

18

02
02

0 
- 

K
in

gs
w

oo
d 

H
ea

lth
y 

E
at

in
g 

C
oo

ke
ry

 C
lu

b 
 s

en
d 

co
m

m
 fu

nd
 fo

rm
C

ol
le

ge

K
in

gs
w

oo
d 

H
ou

se
 k

itc
he

n 
an

d 
T

el
fe

r 
H

ou
se

 w
he

re
 w

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
pr

ep
ar

in
g 

fr
es

h 
sa

la
ds

 
an

d 
ve

ge
ta

bl
es

T
o 

te
ac

h 
11

 -
17

 h
ow

 to
 c

oo
k 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ea
lth

y 
m

ea
ls

 5
 a

 
da

y 
st

ra
te

gy
 to

 in
cr

ea
se

 th
ei

r 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 w
el

l b
ei

ng
 th

ro
ug

h 
a 

ca
re

fu
lly

 p
la

nn
ed

 m
en

u 
w

ith
 g

oo
ds

 fr
om

 a
ll 

cu
ltu

re
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
or

ga
ni

c 
lo

ca
l f

ar
m

ed
 fo

od
0

19
02

02
8 

- 
Lo

w
 C

ro
ss

 W
oo

d 
La

ne
 

S
ec

ur
ity

 M
ea

su
re

s
C

ol
le

ge
F

oo
tp

at
h 

on
to

 L
ow

 C
ro

ss
 

W
oo

d 
La

ne

T
o 

re
pl

ac
e 

th
e 

w
oo

de
n 

ga
te

 a
t t

he
 G

re
at

 B
ro

w
ni

ng
s 

en
tr

an
ce

 
on

to
 L

ow
 C

ro
ss

 W
oo

d 
La

ne
 w

ith
 a

 m
et

al
 r

ai
lin

gs
 g

at
e.

 T
hi

s 
ar

ea
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
as

 a
 c

rim
e 

ho
ts

po
t a

fte
r 

a 
se

rie
s 

of
 

m
ug

gi
ng

s 
la

st
 y

ea
r.

 T
hi

s 
m

ea
su

re
 w

as
 s

ug
ge

st
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

S
ou

th
w

ar
k 

P
ol

ic
e 

cr
im

e 
pr

ev
en

tio
n 

of
fic

er
, a

s 
m

ug
ge

rs
 h

av
e 

be
en

 h
id

in
g 

be
hi

nd
 th

e 
ga

te
. 

   
   

   
   

   
 1

,0
00

 

20
02

03
0 

- 
F

oo
tp

at
h 

Li
gh

tin
g 

fo
r 

a 
S

af
er

 L
itt

le
 B

or
ne

s
C

ol
le

ge

T
he

 e
nt

ra
nc

e 
to

 th
e 

fo
ot

pa
th

 
to

 th
e 

si
de

 o
f 1

 L
itt

le
bo

rn
es

 
w

hi
ch

 e
xt

en
ds

 d
ow

n 
to

 th
e 

si
de

 o
f N

o'
s.

 1
, 1

5 
&

 2
9.

 It
 

ru
ns

 p
ar

al
le

l t
o 

th
e 

re
ar

 g
dn

s 
of

 n
o'

s,
 1

4 
&

 2
2 

A
lle

yn
 P

ar
k

In
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 b

ol
la

rd
 s

ty
le

 li
gh

ts
 o

n 
th

e 
un

lit
 

fo
ot

pa
th

 w
hi

ch
 r

un
s 

no
rt

h/
 s

ou
th

 a
lo

ng
 th

e 
si

de
s 

of
 N

o'
s.

 1
, 

15
 &

 2
9 

Li
ttl

eb
or

ne
s.

 T
he

 p
at

h 
is

 1
08

 m
et

er
s 

lo
ng

. O
n 

on
e 

si
de

 th
er

e 
is

 2
m

 h
ig

h 
fe

nc
in

g 
w

hi
ch

 is
 o

ve
rg

ro
w

n 
by

 s
hr

ub
s 

an
d 

tr
ee

's
 b

ac
ki

ng
 o

nt
o 

N
o'

s.
 1

4 
- 

22
 A

lle
yn

 P
ar

k.
 T

he
 

fo
ot

pa
th

 is
 u

se
d 

by
 L

itt
le

bo
re

s 
R

es
id

en
ts

, v
is

ito
rs

, t
ra

de
m

en
 

an
d 

sc
ho

ol
 c

hi
ld

re
n.

 T
he

 fo
ot

pa
th

 is
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
un

sa
fe

 a
fte

r 
da

rk
. 

0

21
02

03
2 

- 
C

ou
nt

is
bu

ry
 H

ou
se

 
E

nt
ra

nc
e

C
ol

le
ge

A
t t

he
 s

id
e 

of
 th

e 
fr

on
t s

te
ps

T
o 

in
st

al
l  

2 
la

rg
e 

po
t p

la
nt

s 
at

 th
e 

si
de

 o
f t

he
 s

te
ps

 to
 r

ep
la

ce
 

th
e 

on
es

 th
at

 w
er

e 
th

er
e 

be
fo

re
.  

P
la

nt
s 

m
ak

e 
th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t g
re

en
er

   
   

   
   

   
 1

,0
00

 

22
02

03
4 

- 
D

ul
w

ic
h 

P
ar

k 
M

em
or

ia
l R

es
to

ra
tio

n 
P

ha
se

 2
C

ol
le

ge
D

ul
w

ic
h 

C
om

m
on

 L
or

ds
hi

p 
La

ne
 ju

nc
tio

n

T
o 

pl
ac

e 
a 

no
tic

e 
bo

ar
d,

 b
en

ch
 a

nd
 c

ar
ry

 o
ut

 fu
rt

he
r 

re
st

or
at

io
n 

w
or

ks
 to

 th
e 

D
ul

w
ic

h 
w

ar
 m

em
or

ia
l w

hi
ch

 w
as

 
st

ar
te

d 
la

st
 y

ea
r 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 b

en
ef

it 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 b
y 

in
fo

rm
in

g 
th

em
 o

f t
he

 h
is

to
ry

.
0

23
02

03
8 

- 
S

ec
ur

ity
, l

ig
ht

in
g 

on
 

cr
ox

te
d 

ro
ad

 e
st

at
e

C
ol

le
ge

V
ar

io
us

 a
re

as
 w

he
re

 li
gh

ts
 

ar
e 

ba
d 

/ p
oo

r 
on

 c
ro

xt
ed

 
ro

ad
H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 S
af

et
y,

 s
ec

ur
ity

, n
ee

d 
be

tte
r 

lig
ht

in
g 

ar
ou

nd
 th

e 
es

ta
te

  I
t w

ill
 b

rig
ht

en
 a

re
as

 th
at

 h
av

e 
po

or
 li

gh
tin

g
0

11



24
02

04
0 

- 
N

ew
 L

ea
f P

ro
je

ct
C

ol
le

ge
W

es
t D

ul
w

ic
h 

S
ta

tio
n

D
ev

el
op

 b
an

k 
on

 s
id

e 
of

 s
ta

tio
n 

ne
xt

 to
 C

ro
xt

ed
 R

oa
d 

es
ta

te
, 

de
ve

lo
p 

pa
th

 o
f n

at
ur

e,
 k

no
w

le
dg

e 
an

d 
co

nt
in

ui
ng

 w
or

k 
on

 
pr

oj
ec

t o
n 

sa
m

e 
si

te
. T

hi
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

a 
te

ac
hi

ng
 r

es
ou

rs
e 

fo
r 

5 
- 

6 
ye

ar
 o

ld
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ho

 w
ill

 b
ui

ld
 th

e 
ga

rd
en

 a
s 

a 
te

ac
hi

ng
 

re
so

ur
se

 c
en

tr
e 

of
 fu

rt
he

r 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

an
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t f

or
 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 th

e 
S

ou
th

w
ar

k 
C

ou
nc

il 
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e

0

25
02

04
1 

- 
G

ile
s 

C
op

pi
ce

 
F

oo
tp

at
h 

A
cc

es
s 

W
or

ks
C

ol
le

ge
G

ile
s 

C
op

pi
ce

 S
E

21

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

fo
r 

fu
nd

in
g 

to
 c

re
at

e 
a 

fo
ot

pa
th

 to
 th

e 
dw

el
lin

gs
 in

 
th

e 
to

p 
ro

w
 o

f h
ou

se
s.

 T
he

re
 a

re
 1

1 
ho

us
es

, s
ev

en
 o

f w
hi

ch
 

ar
e 

oc
cu

pi
ed

 b
y 

co
up

le
s 

ag
ed

 6
0 

an
d 

ov
ee

r,
 w

ith
 o

ne
 h

av
in

g 
re

si
de

nt
s 

ag
ed

 7
0 

an
d 

ov
er

. T
he

 h
ou

se
s 

ar
e 

ac
ce

ss
ed

 b
y 

st
ep

s 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 p
ro

vi
ng

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
ly

 d
iff

ic
ul

t t
o 

ne
go

tia
te

. I
t i

s 
cl

ea
r 

th
at

 a
 p

at
h 

cu
t i

n 
th

e 
up

pe
r 

le
ve

l w
ill

 p
ro

ve
 to

 b
e 

sa
fe

r 
fo

r 
al

l c
on

ce
rn

ed
, a

nd
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

a 
w

is
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
t b

y 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l. 
   

   
   

   
  1

0,
00

0 

26
02

04
5 

- 
ga

te
s 

fo
r 

S
af

et
y 

Is
su

e 
on

 C
ro

xt
ed

 R
oa

d 
E

st
at

e
C

ol
le

ge
G

at
es

 a
t i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 lo
ca

tio
ns

 
on

 e
st

at
e

H
ea

lth
 &

 S
af

et
y 

se
cu

rit
y 

fo
r 

re
si

de
nt

s 
on

 th
e 

es
ta

te
. I

t w
ill

 
st

op
 a

nt
i-s

oc
ia

l b
eh

av
io

ur
 a

nd
 e

na
bl

e 
re

si
de

tn
s 

to
 fe

el
 s

af
er

 
on

 th
e 

es
ta

te
. T

he
 g

at
es

 w
ill

 d
et

er
 h

ot
sp

ot
 c

au
si

ng
 A

S
B

   
   

   
   

   
 2

,0
00

 

27
02

04
7 

- 
S

yd
en

ha
m

 H
ill

 e
st

at
e 

G
re

en
 A

re
a

C
ol

le
ge

S
yd

en
ha

m
 H

ill
 E

st
at

e 
(o

ff 
La

ps
ew

oo
d 

W
al

k)

A
dd

 to
 p

la
nt

in
g 

of
 g

re
en

 c
or

ne
r 

on
 e

st
at

e.
 B

rig
ht

en
 u

p 
ar

ea
 

of
f L

ap
se

 W
oo

d 
W

al
k 

 Im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

lo
ok

 o
f t

he
 g

ro
t s

po
t  

It 
w

ill
 tu

rn
 a

 w
or

n 
gr

as
s 

ar
ea

 in
to

 a
 s

m
al

l c
om

m
un

ity
 g

ar
de

n 
fo

r 
es

ta
te

   
   

   
   

   
   

 7
50

 

28
02

04
8 

- 
52

4 
Lo

rd
sh

ip
 L

an
e 

re
ar

 g
ar

de
n

C
ol

le
ge

R
ea

r 
G

ar
de

n
T

o 
re

ne
w

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

2 
be

nc
he

s 
an

d 
re

pa
ir 

ro
ta

ry
 d

rie
r

   
   

   
   

   
 1

,2
00

 

29
02

05
1 

- 
H

an
dr

ai
ls

 fo
r 

G
la

ze
br

oo
k 

fla
ts

C
ol

le
ge

A
ll 

th
e 

fr
on

t e
nt

ra
nc

es
 to

 th
e 

G
la

ze
rb

ro
ok

 fl
at

s 
on

 th
e 

es
ta

te

S
af

et
y 

ha
nd

ra
ils

 fo
r 

th
e 

en
tr

an
ce

s 
to

 th
e 

fla
ts

, t
hi

s 
w

ill
 h

el
p 

al
l 

re
si

de
nt

s 
th

at
 c

on
m

e 
an

d 
go

 in
to

 th
e 

fla
ts

, w
ith

 s
af

et
y 

re
as

on
s 

to
 s

to
p 

re
si

de
nt

s 
fr

om
 fa

lli
ng

 d
ow

n 
th

e 
st

ai
rs

0

30

02
05

6 
- 

W
id

er
 p

at
h 

fr
om

 W
es

t 
D

ul
w

ic
h 

S
ta

tio
n 

to
 A

ca
ci

a 
G

ro
ve

C
ol

le
ge

B
et

w
ee

n 
W

es
t D

ul
w

ic
h 

st
at

tio
n 

an
d 

A
ca

ci
a 

G
ro

ve

W
id

en
 th

e 
pa

th
 b

et
w

ee
n 

W
es

t D
ul

w
ic

h 
S

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
A

ca
ci

a 
G

ro
ve

 w
he

re
 th

er
e 

is
 s

pa
ce

 a
t t

he
 b

ot
to

m
 o

f t
he

 e
m

ba
nk

m
en

t 
(w

ith
 th

e 
ag

re
em

en
t o

f N
et

w
or

kR
ai

l)
0

31
01

96
9 

- 
Lo

rd
sh

ip
 L

an
e 

es
ta

te
C

ol
le

ge
Lo

rd
sh

ip
 L

an
e 

es
ta

te

T
o 

in
st

al
l o

ut
do

or
 g

ym
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t, 
pl

an
tin

g 
bu

lb
s 

an
d 

tw
o 

w
ild

 g
ar

de
ns

 a
nd

 in
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 r

ai
lin

g 
on

 th
e 

lo
w

 w
al

ls
 

ar
ou

nd
 th

e 
es

ta
te

   
   

   
   

  1
2,

00
0 

th
e 

aw
ar

d 
is

 to
 b

uy
 m

or
e 

ou
td

oo
r 

gy
m

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t a

nd
 e

xt
ra

 p
la

nt
in

g 
on

 e
st

at
e.

32
02

09
5 

K
in

gs
w

oo
d 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

sh
op

C
ol

le
ge

37
 &

 3
8 

S
ee

le
y 

D
riv

e
C

re
at

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 d
ro

p 
in

 fa
ci

lit
y 

in
 tw

o 
em

pt
y 

sh
op

s
   

   
   

   
  1

0,
00

0 

33
C

ro
xt

ed
 R

oa
d 

es
ta

te
 -

 fo
ot

pa
th

 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n
C

ol
le

ge
P

at
h 

fr
om

 W
es

t D
ul

w
ic

h 
st

at
io

n 
to

 A
ca

ci
a 

G
ro

ve

R
em

ov
e 

w
al

l t
ha

t b
ac

ks
 o

nt
o 

fo
ot

ba
ll 

co
ur

t a
nd

 r
ep

la
ce

 w
ith

 a
 

fe
nc

e;
 li

gh
tin

g 
im

pr
ov

m
en

ts
 to

 p
at

hw
ay

; p
la

nt
 b

us
he

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
tr

ee
s 

to
 fo

rm
 n

at
ur

al
 b

ar
rie

r 
to

 s
to

p 
cu

t t
hr

ou
gh

; 
cy

cl
e 

ga
te

s 
to

 b
e 

pl
ac

ed
 a

t e
ith

er
 e

nd
 o

f l
an

e 
to

 s
lo

w
 c

yc
lis

ts
   

   
   

   
  2

5,
00

0 

34
01

82
7 

- 
W

he
el

s 
in

 th
e 

W
oo

d
C

ol
le

ge
S

yd
en

ha
m

 H
ill

 W
oo

ds
/ 

P
ec

ka
rm

an
s 

R
oa

d 
en

tr
an

ce

T
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

w
he

el
ch

ai
r 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 p

at
hs

 to
 th

e 
S

yd
en

ha
m

 H
ill

 
W

oo
ds

 to
 m

ak
e 

th
e 

w
oo

dl
an

d 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 to
 th

os
e 

w
ith

 
m

ob
ili

ty
 is

su
es

 a
nd

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s

0

35

01
62

1 
- 

R
en

ew
 B

ol
la

rd
s 

at
 

ju
nc

tio
n 

of
 U

pl
an

d 
R

oa
d 

an
d 

H
in

dm
an

s 
R

oa
d

E
as

t 
D

ul
w

ic
h

Ju
nc

tio
n 

of
 U

pl
an

d 
R

oa
d 

an
d 

H
in

dm
an

s 
R

oa
d

T
o 

re
pl

ac
e 

th
e 

ol
d 

bo
lla

rd
s,

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 r

us
ty

 w
ith

 n
ew

 b
ol

la
rd

s
0

36

01
62

4 
- 

R
en

ew
 B

ol
la

rd
s 

at
 

C
ry

st
al

 P
al

ac
e 

R
oa

d/
 G

oo
dr

ic
h 

R
oa

d 
ju

nc
tio

n
E

as
t 

D
ul

w
ic

h
Ju

nc
tio

n 
of

 C
ry

st
al

 P
al

ac
e 

R
oa

d 
an

d 
go

od
ric

h 
R

oa
d

T
o 

re
pl

ac
e 

th
e 

ol
d 

bo
lla

rd
s,

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 r

us
ty

 w
ith

 n
ew

 b
ol

la
rd

s
0

37
01

75
0 

- 
G

oo
dr

ic
h 

P
rim

ar
y 

S
ch

oo
l W

ild
lif

e 
P

on
d

E
as

t 
D

ul
w

ic
h

P
la

yg
ro

un
d 

at
 G

oo
dr

ic
h 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

rim
ar

y 
S

ch
oo

l

E
nl

ar
ge

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

sm
al

l p
on

d 
in

 th
e 

ch
ild

re
ns

 p
la

yg
ro

un
d 

an
d 

in
st

al
l s

ea
tin

g,
 a

 b
ird

 fe
ed

er
/ b

en
ch

, n
ot

ic
e 

bo
ar

d,
 a

nd
 4

 
ra

is
ed

 g
re

en
in

g 
be

ds
.

0

38
01

76
3 

- 
E

as
t D

ul
w

ic
h 

C
ar

bo
n 

F
un

d
E

as
t 

D
ul

w
ic

h
C

om
m

un
ity

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 in

 E
as

t 
D

ul
w

ic
h

C
re

at
e 

a 
C

ar
bo

n 
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

F
un

d 
fo

r 
E

as
t D

ul
w

ic
h,

 m
on

ey
 fo

r 
in

su
la

tio
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 in
 th

e 
fir

st
 y

ea
r 

fo
r 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

bu
ild

in
gs

 s
uc

h 
as

 s
ch

oo
ls

 a
nd

 n
ur

se
rie

s 
to

 r
ed

uc
e 

en
er

gy
 

us
e 

an
d 

ru
nn

in
g 

co
st

s.
0

39
01

76
5 

- 
D

am
p 

P
ro

of
in

g 
D

ul
w

ic
h 

Is
la

m
ic

 C
en

tr
e

E
as

t 
D

ul
w

ic
h

D
ul

w
ic

h 
Is

la
m

ic
 C

en
tr

e 
23

 
N

or
th

 C
ro

ss
 R

oa
d 

S
E

22
 9

E
T

D
am

p 
pr

oo
f t

he
 b

as
em

en
t a

re
a 

to
 p

re
ve

nt
 r

is
in

g 
da

m
p 

un
de

rm
in

in
g 

re
ce

nt
 w

or
ks

 fu
nd

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
D

C
C

. T
he

se
 w

or
ks

 
im

pr
ov

ed
 th

e 
en

tr
an

ce
 a

re
a 

an
d 

to
ile

t f
ac

ili
tie

s
0

40
01

77
0 

- 
E

.d
 W

ar
eh

ou
se

 B
ag

s
E

as
t 

D
ul

w
ic

h
E

.d
 W

ar
eh

ou
se

 In
do

or
 

M
ar

ke
t i

n 
E

as
t D

ul
w

ic
h

T
o 

su
pp

ly
 fr

ee
 r

e-
cy

cl
ed

 a
nd

 r
e-

us
ea

bl
e 

co
tto

n 
ba

gs
 to

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 w

he
re

by
 r

ed
uc

in
g 

th
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r 

pe
op

le
 to

 u
se

 p
la

st
ic

 
ba

gs
0

12



41
01

92
5 

- 
N

or
cr

of
t g

dn
s 

S
E

22
E

as
t 

D
ul

w
ic

h

N
or

cr
of

t G
dn

s 
S

E
22

, t
he

 
th

re
e 

gr
ee

ns
 a

t t
he

 fr
on

t a
nd

 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
si

de
 a

nd
 b

eh
in

d 
th

e 
bu

ng
al

ow
s

In
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

fe
nc

in
g 

ar
ou

nd
 th

e 
th

re
e 

gr
ee

ns
, h

av
e 

a 
lo

ck
ed

 
ga

te
 a

nd
 'n

o 
do

g 
fo

ul
in

g'
 s

ig
ns

10
00

0

42
01

92
7 

- 
G

re
en

in
g 

S
um

m
er

ho
us

e 
P

la
yg

ro
un

d
E

as
t 

D
ul

w
ic

h

S
um

m
er

ho
us

e 
P

up
il 

R
ef

er
ra

l 
U

ni
t, 

G
oo

dr
ic

h 
R

oa
d,

 S
E

22
 

0E
P

F
en

ce
d 

an
d 

ne
tte

d 
sp

or
ts

 a
re

as
 a

nd
 w

el
co

m
e 

ga
rd

en
 fo

r 
th

e 
S

um
m

er
ho

us
e 

pu
pi

l r
ef

er
ra

l u
ni

t f
or

 p
rim

ar
y 

sc
ho

ol
 

pl
ay

gr
ou

nd
 w

hi
ch

 h
as

 n
o 

ar
ea

 m
ar

ke
d 

ou
t f

or
 s

po
rt

s
0

43
01

93
1 

- 
E

as
t D

ul
w

ic
h 

C
ar

 C
lu

b
E

as
t 

D
ul

w
ic

h
25

 E
as

t D
ul

w
ic

h 
S

tr
ee

ts

S
ou

th
w

ar
k 

is
 in

 th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

of
 r

ol
lin

g 
ou

t C
ar

 C
lu

b 
sp

ac
es

 
an

d 
se

le
ct

in
g 

a 
pa

rt
ne

r.
 C

ar
 C

lu
bs

 h
av

e 
be

en
 g

ro
w

in
g 

w
he

re
 

im
pl

im
en

te
d 

by
 o

ve
r 

10
0%

 p
a.

 E
ac

h 
C

ar
 C

lu
b 

ca
r 

re
du

ce
s 

ov
er

al
l c

ar
 p

ar
ki

ng
 b

y 
8 

- 
15

 p
riv

at
el

y 
ow

ne
d 

ca
rs

. T
hi

s 
C

G
S

 
bi

d 
is

 to
 in

st
al

l a
n 

ex
tr

a 
25

 C
ar

 C
lu

b 
sp

ac
es

 w
hi

ch
 in

 
co

nj
un

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 5

 w
ill

 r
es

ul
t i

n 
ha

lf 
of

 E
as

t 
D

ul
w

ic
h 

st
re

et
 h

av
in

g 
C

ar
 C

lu
b 

ca
rs

. I
t w

ill
 r

ed
uc

e 
th

 
w

nu
m

be
rs

 o
f p

riv
at

el
y 

ow
ne

d 
ca

rs
 b

y 
re

pl
ac

em
en

t w
ith

 
sh

ar
ed

 C
ar

 C
lu

b 
sp

ac
es

10
,0

00

44

01
96

8 
- 

Ju
nc

tio
n 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 M

el
bo

ur
ne

 
G

ro
ve

 w
ith

 A
sh

bo
ur

ne
 a

nd
 

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

 G
ro

ve
E

as
t 

D
ul

w
ic

h
M

el
bo

ur
ne

 G
ro

ve
C

ha
ng

e 
th

e 
ju

nc
tio

n 
la

yo
ut

s 
of

 th
es

e 
ju

nc
tio

ns
 to

 r
ed

uc
e 

sp
ee

di
ng

0

45
01

97
1 

- 
E

as
t D

ul
w

ic
h 

LE
D

 
st

re
et

 li
gh

tin
g

E
as

t 
D

ul
w

ic
h

E
as

t D
ul

w
ic

h 
S

tr
ee

t -
 T

o 
be

 
co

nf
irm

ed
 w

hi
ch

 o
ne

s

T
o 

in
st

al
l L

E
D

 s
tr

ee
t l

ig
ht

in
g 

in
 o

ne
 o

r 
m

or
e 

E
as

t D
ul

w
ic

h 
S

tr
ee

ts
 to

 s
ee

 if
 th

e 
re

po
rt

ed
 e

ne
rg

y 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 

be
be

fit
s 

w
ill

 w
or

k 
ob

ta
in

ed
 in

 S
ou

th
 L

on
do

n
0

46
01

98
3 

- 
E

as
t D

ul
w

ic
h 

C
rim

e 
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

F
un

d
E

as
t 

D
ul

w
ic

h

E
as

t D
ul

w
ic

h 
w

id
e 

af
fe

ct
in

g 
ho

m
es

 a
nd

 b
us

in
es

se
s 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
w

ar
d

C
ap

ita
l m

on
ey

 to
 fu

nd
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

to
 h

el
p 

re
du

ce
 c

rim
e.

 T
hi

s 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

th
e 

se
co

nd
 y

ea
r 

of
 th

is
 fu

nd
15

,0
00

47
01

98
6 

- 
E

as
t D

ul
w

ic
h 

T
re

es
E

as
t 

D
ul

w
ic

h
E

as
t D

ul
w

ic
h 

S
tr

ee
ts

In
st

al
l m

or
e 

st
re

et
 tr

ee
s 

on
 E

as
t D

ul
w

ic
h 

st
re

et
s.

 M
ak

e 
th

e 
ar

ea
 g

re
en

er
, r

ed
uc

e 
po

llu
tio

n,
 n

oi
se

, p
ar

tic
ul

at
es

 a
nd

 C
O

2
90

00

48
01

98
8 

- 
E

as
t D

ul
w

ic
h 

E
le

ct
ric

 
C

ar
 C

ha
rg

in
g

E
as

t 
D

ul
w

ic
h

E
as

t D
ul

w
ic

h 
S

tr
ee

ts

S
up

po
rt

 th
e 

in
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 e

le
ct

ric
 c

ar
 c

ha
rg

in
g 

po
in

ts
 o

n 
th

e 
st

re
et

s 
of

 E
as

t D
ul

w
ic

h 
m

ak
in

g 
it 

as
 e

as
y 

to
 o

bt
ai

n 
su

ch
 

ch
ar

gi
ng

 p
oi

nt
s 

as
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 c
ar

 p
ar

ki
ng

. 
0

49
01

98
9 

- 
F

rie
rn

 R
oa

d 
S

cu
lp

tu
re

E
as

t 
D

ul
w

ic
h

Ju
nc

tio
n 

of
 F

rie
rn

 R
oa

d 
w

ith
 

Lo
rd

sh
ip

 L
an

e

C
om

m
is

si
on

 s
cu

pl
tu

re
 fo

r 
th

e 
ju

nc
tio

n 
of

 F
rie

rn
 R

oa
d 

an
d 

Lo
rd

sh
ip

 L
an

e.
 M

ak
e 

th
is

 a
re

a 
m

or
e 

at
tr

ac
tiv

e 
an

d 
co

un
te

r 
th

e 
de

tr
im

en
ta

l b
us

 p
ar

ki
ng

 it
 s

uf
fe

rs
 fr

om
. 

0

50
01

99
1 

- 
W

e 
Lo

ve
 E

as
t D

ul
w

ic
h

E
as

t 
D

ul
w

ic
h

S
ho

pp
in

g 
S

tr
ee

ts
 o

n 
E

as
t 

D
ul

w
ic

h

Im
pr

ov
e 

sh
op

pi
ng

 s
tr

ee
ts

 in
 e

as
t d

ul
w

ic
h 

w
ith

 la
m

p 
po

st
 

ba
nn

er
s 

pr
oc

la
im

in
g 

ea
st

 d
ul

w
ic

h 
an

d 
ha

ng
in

g 
ba

sk
et

s.
 T

hi
s 

w
ill

 b
rig

ht
en

 u
p 

ea
st

 d
ul

w
ic

h 
an

d 
pe

rh
ap

s 
en

ga
ge

 lo
ca

l 
sc

ho
ol

s 
to

 d
es

ig
n 

ba
nn

er
s,

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 s

ho
ps

 to
 a

do
pt

 
ha

ng
in

g 
ba

sk
et

s 
11

00
0

51

01
99

3 
- 

E
as

t D
ul

w
ic

h 
Lo

rd
sh

ip
 

la
ne

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 b
et

w
ee

n 
B

ar
ry

 R
oa

d 
an

d 
C

ry
st

al
 P

al
ac

e 
R

oa
d

E
as

t 
D

ul
w

ic
h

Lo
rd

sh
ip

 L
an

e 
ea

st
er

n 
si

de
 

be
tw

ee
n 

B
ar

ry
 R

oa
d 

an
d 

C
ry

st
al

 P
al

ac
e 

R
oa

d

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
st

re
et

 s
ca

pe
 b

et
w

ee
n 

B
ar

ry
 R

oa
d 

an
d 

C
ry

st
al

 P
al

ac
e 

R
oa

d 
on

 L
or

ds
hi

p 
La

ne
 e

.g
 T

re
e'

s,
 b

en
ch

es
 

an
d 

pa
vi

ng
, e

nc
ou

ra
gi

ng
 m

or
e 

us
e 

of
 lo

ca
l s

ho
ps

 
en

co
ur

ag
in

g 
pe

op
le

 w
al

ki
ng

 to
 th

em
.

20
00

0

52
01

99
5 

- 
N

or
th

cr
os

s 
M

ar
ke

ts
E

as
t 

D
ul

w
ic

h
N

or
th

cr
os

s 
R

oa
d

In
st

al
l p

op
 u

p 
el

ec
tr

ic
 p

oi
nt

s 
fo

r 
N

or
th

cr
os

s 
m

ar
ke

t t
o 

el
im

in
at

e 
th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r 
no

is
y 

ge
ne

ra
to

rs
 c

on
st

an
tly

 r
un

ni
ng

26
95

0

53
F

rie
rn

 R
oa

d 
es

ta
te

E
as

t 
D

ul
w

ic
h

F
rie

rn
 R

oa
d 

es
ta

te
F

en
ci

ng
 a

ro
un

d 
gr

as
se

d 
ar

ea
s 

to
 p

re
ve

nt
 d

og
s 

en
te

rin
g 

ar
ea

s 
th

at
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

pl
ay

 in
0

54

02
02

9 
- 

F
oo

d 
w

as
te

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n 

fr
om

 r
es

ta
ur

an
ts

 in
 E

as
t 

D
ul

w
ic

h 
re

ve
nu

e
E

as
t 

D
ul

w
ic

h

F
ro

m
 G

ro
ve

 V
al

e 
to

 B
ar

ry
 

R
oa

d 
al

on
g 

Lo
rd

sh
ip

 L
an

e 
- 

re
st

au
ra

nt
s 

an
d 

pu
bs

 h
av

e 
ag

re
ed

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 th

e 
th

re
e 

m
on

th
 p

ili
ot

 s
tu

dy
,

1 
to

nn
e 

of
 fo

od
 w

as
te

 d
ep

os
ite

d 
in

 la
nd

fil
l c

re
at

es
 3

/4
 to

nn
e 

of
 m

et
ha

ne
 . 

P
ro

po
si

ng
 fr

ee
 th

re
e 

m
on

th
 p

ilo
t s

tu
dy

 fo
r 

re
st

au
ra

nt
s 

in
 E

as
t D

ul
w

ic
h 

to
 s

am
pl

e 
w

ha
t i

t w
ou

ld
 b

e 
lik

e 
to

 
ch

an
ge

 th
ei

r 
w

as
te

 b
eh

av
io

ur
. A

fte
r 

pi
lo

t r
es

ta
ur

an
ts

 c
an

 
re

ca
lc

ul
at

e 
th

ei
r 

ru
bb

is
h 

to
 fu

nd
 m

or
e 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
an

d 
ta

ke
 u

p 
th

e 
co

lle
ct

io
on

 w
ith

 A
ar

dv
ar

k.
4,

55
0

55
02

01
4 

- 
F

lo
or

in
g 

E
as

t D
ul

w
ic

h 
C

om
m

un
ity

 C
en

tr
e

E
as

t 
D

ul
w

ic
h

46
 -

 5
0 

D
ar

re
ll 

R
oa

d 
E

as
t 

D
ul

w
ic

h 
 S

E
22

 9
N

L

T
o 

re
pl

ac
e 

th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

vi
ny

l f
lo

or
in

g 
in

 th
e 

ea
st

 D
ul

w
ic

h 
co

m
m

un
ity

 c
en

tr
e 

an
d 

re
pl

ac
e 

th
e 

en
tr

an
ce

 m
at

tin
g.

 T
he

 
ex

is
tin

g 
flo

or
in

g 
ha

s 
w

or
n 

an
d 

ha
s 

da
m

ag
ed

 a
re

as
 a

nd
 p

ar
ts

 
ar

e 
ve

ry
 u

ns
ig

ht
ly

. O
ne

 o
r 

tw
o 

ar
ea

s 
co

ul
d 

be
co

m
e 

tr
ip

 
ha

za
rd

s 
if 

no
t r

ep
la

ce
d 

so
on

. T
he

 c
en

tr
e 

as
 a

 w
ho

le
 w

ou
ld

 
lo

ok
 m

or
e 

at
tr

ac
tiv

e 
an

d 
be

 e
as

ie
r 

to
 c

le
an

.
0

13



56
02

03
6 

- 
B

ik
e 

S
he

ds
 H

al
liw

el
l 

C
ou

rt
E

as
t 

D
ul

w
ic

h
A

t t
he

 r
ea

r 
of

 th
e 

bl
oc

k 
ne

ar
 

to
 c

ar
pa

rk
 n

ea
r 

F
la

t 1

La
rg

e 
re

ce
ss

 a
re

a 
un

de
rn

ea
th

 th
e 

bl
oc

k 
is

 p
ro

ne
 to

 fl
yt

ip
pi

ng
. 

T
he

re
 is

 a
 p

ro
bl

em
 w

ith
 s

to
ra

ge
 in

 th
e 

bl
oc

k 
as

 th
e 

fla
ts

 d
o 

no
t h

av
e 

pr
iv

at
e 

ba
lc

on
ie

s 
an

d 
re

si
de

nt
s 

st
or

e 
th

ei
r 

ite
m

s 
eg

 
bi

ke
s,

 p
ra

m
s 

et
c 

on
 c

om
m

un
al

 la
nd

in
gs

 w
hi

ch
 r

ai
se

 h
ea

lth
 

an
d 

sa
fe

ty
 is

su
es

.  
 P

ro
vi

de
 r

es
id

en
ts

 w
ith

 s
to

ra
ge

 s
pa

ce
 th

at
 

is
 la

ck
in

g 
in

 th
e 

bl
oc

k.
40

00

57
Im

pr
ov

ed
 p

ed
 c

ro
ss

in
g 

at
 A

dy
s 

R
oa

d 
en

d 
of

 G
oo

se
 G

re
en

E
as

t 
D

ul
w

ic
h

Ju
nc

tio
n 

of
 E

as
t D

ul
w

ic
h 

R
oa

d 
an

d 
A

dy
s 

R
oa

d 
ch

an
gi

ng
 in

to
 C

ry
st

al
 p

al
ac

e 
ro

ad

Le
ng

th
en

 g
re

en
 m

an
 p

ha
se

 a
t e

xi
st

in
g 

tr
af

fic
 li

gh
ts

; e
na

bl
in

g 
pe

ds
 to

 c
ro

ss
 d

ia
go

na
lly

 a
cr

os
s 

th
is

 c
ro

ss
in

g;
 in

st
al

l r
ai

se
d 

ta
bl

e
0

57
A

G
oo

se
 G

re
en

 p
rim

ar
y 

sc
ho

ol
 

re
us

ea
bl

e 
ba

gs
 s

ch
em

e
E

as
t 

D
ul

w
ic

h
G

oo
se

 G
re

en
 s

ch
oo

l
R

eu
se

ab
le

 b
ag

s 
sc

he
m

e 
(a

s 
pe

r 
C

F
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n)
10

00

57
B

S
ch

oo
l c

om
po

st
in

g 
sc

he
m

e 
(c

ap
ita

l e
le

m
en

t o
f C

F
 b

id
)

E
as

t 
D

ul
w

ic
h

E
as

t D
ul

w
ic

h
S

ch
oo

l c
om

po
st

in
g 

sc
he

m
e

45
0

58

02
04

9 
-W

id
en

in
g 

th
e 

fo
ot

pa
th

 
on

 th
e 

ea
st

er
n 

si
de

 o
f C

ol
le

ge
 

R
oa

d 
ne

ar
 P

ic
kw

ic
k 

C
ot

ta
ge

V
ill

ag
e

C
ol

le
ge

 R
oa

d,
 s

ou
th

 o
f 

D
ul

w
ic

h 
P

ar
k

O
n 

th
e 

ea
st

er
n 

si
de

 o
f C

ol
le

ge
 R

oa
d 

th
e 

1m
 w

id
e 

fo
ot

pa
th

 is
 

pr
ot

ec
te

d 
by

 tr
ad

iti
on

al
 w

hi
te

 D
ul

w
ic

h 
po

st
s 

an
d 

ch
ai

ns
. T

he
 

pa
th

 o
n 

th
e 

w
es

te
rn

 s
id

e 
of

 th
e 

ro
ad

 is
 s

ha
re

d 
w

ith
 c

yc
lis

ts
 s

o 
m

an
y 

pe
de

st
ria

ns
 p

re
fe

r 
to

 w
al

k 
on

 th
e 

ea
st

er
n 

si
de

. 
W

id
en

in
g 

th
e 

pa
th

 b
y 

m
ov

in
g 

th
e 

w
hi

te
 p

os
ts

 a
nd

 c
ha

in
 in

to
 

th
e 

ca
rr

ia
ge

w
ay

 w
ill

 m
ak

e 
C

ol
le

ge
 R

oa
d 

sa
fe

r.
 

0

59
P

la
nt

lo
ck

 a
t N

or
th

 D
ul

w
ic

h 
st

at
io

n
V

ill
ag

e
O

ut
si

de
 N

or
th

 D
ul

w
ic

h 
st

at
io

n
In

st
al

l a
 p

la
nt

lo
ck

 c
om

bi
ne

d 
cy

cl
e 

pa
rk

in
g 

an
d 

pl
an

tin
g 

bo
x 

ou
ts

id
e 

N
D

 s
ta

tio
n 

by
 th

e 
P

ot
 S

ho
p

0

60

T
re

es
 in

 b
ui

ld
 o

ut
 a

t j
un

ct
io

n 
of

 
V

ill
ag

e 
W

ay
 a

nd
 H

al
f M

oo
n 

La
ne

V
ill

ag
e

Ju
nc

tio
n 

of
 V

ill
ag

e 
W

ay
 a

nd
 

H
al

f M
oo

n 
La

ne
P

la
nt

 s
ix

 tr
ee

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
fo

ot
pa

th
 a

nd
 th

e 
ro

ad
0

61
E

D
G

E
 v

eg
et

ab
le

 g
ar

de
n

V
ill

ag
e

O
ld

 p
la

y 
ar

ea
 b

eh
in

d 
10

 Is
el

 
W

ay
 a

nd
 A

rn
he

m
 W

ay
In

st
al

l n
um

be
r 

of
 r

ai
se

d 
be

ds
 to

 g
ro

w
 v

eg
et

ab
le

s
   

   
   

   
   

 4
,5

00
 

T
hi

s 
is

 a
 p

ilo
t s

ch
em

e 
an

d 
its

 
su

cc
es

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
as

se
ss

ed
.  

 If
 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
, a

pp
lic

an
t c

ou
ld

 a
pp

ly
 

fo
r 

m
or

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
ne

xt
 y

ea
r.

  K
ey

 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 b

e 
ar

ra
ng

ed
. 

62
01

94
3 

- 
H

ill
sb

or
o 

R
oa

d 
G

re
en

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
V

ill
ag

e

T
he

 g
re

en
 a

t t
he

 c
or

ne
r 

of
 

H
ill

sb
or

o 
R

oa
d 

an
d 

T
ho

rn
co

m
be

 R
oa

d 
in

 E
as

t 
D

ul
w

ic
h,

 S
E

22

Im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

sm
al

l g
re

en
 a

t t
he

 c
or

ne
r 

of
 H

ill
sb

or
o 

R
oa

d 
an

d 
T

ho
rn

co
m

be
 R

oa
d 

in
 E

as
t D

ul
w

ic
h 

w
ith

 th
e 

pl
an

tin
g 

of
 

ad
di

tio
na

l t
re

e'
s,

 s
pr

in
g 

bu
lb

s,
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t t
o 

th
e 

pa
th

s 
an

d 
tr

he
 in

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 a
 s

m
al

l s
cu

lp
tu

re
.

0

63

01
69

0 
- 

O
ut

do
or

 fi
tn

es
s 

eq
ui

pm
en

t f
or

 a
du

lts
 a

nd
 

te
en

ag
er

s 
in

 D
ul

w
ic

h 
P

ar
k

V
ill

ag
e

T
he

 e
xa

ct
 lo

ca
tio

n 
is

 y
et

 to
 

be
 a

gr
ee

d.
A

n 
'a

du
lt 

pl
ay

gr
ou

nd
' a

re
a 

w
ith

 fi
tn

es
s 

eq
ui

pm
en

t f
or

 a
du

lts
 

an
d 

te
en

ag
er

s 
in

 D
ul

w
ic

h 
pa

rk
   

   
   

   
  2

0,
00

0 

64
01

72
9 

- 
G

ro
ts

po
t c

le
an

-u
p 

in
 

H
er

ne
 H

ill
 -

 Id
ea

 1
V

ill
ag

e

C
ar

 P
ar

k 
be

hi
nd

 1
2 

- 
24

 H
al

f 
M

oo
n 

La
ne

, D
ul

w
ic

h,
 S

E
24

 
9H

U
  

In
st

al
la

tio
n 

of
 a

 m
et

al
 fe

nc
e 

an
d 

ga
te

s 
to

 c
on

tr
ol

 
un

au
th

or
is

ed
 v

eh
ic

ul
ar

 a
nd

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 th
e 

en
tr

an
ce

 to
 th

e 
ca

r 
pa

rk
 a

t t
he

 r
ea

r 
of

 th
e 

sh
op

s 
to

 th
e 

so
ut

h 
of

 H
al

f N
m

oo
n 

la
ne

 a
nd

 S
tr

ad
el

la
 R

oa
d

   
   

   
   

  1
0,

00
0 

T
he

 C
G

S
 a

w
ar

d 
is

 fo
r 

fu
nd

in
g 

up
 

to
 5

0%
 o

f t
he

 to
ta

l  
co

st
 o

f t
he

 
w

or
ks

 p
er

fo
rm

ed
.  

A
t l

ea
st

 5
0%

 o
f 

th
e 

co
st

 o
f t

he
 s

ch
em

e 
m

us
t b

e 
m

at
ch

 fu
nd

ed
 fr

om
 D

ul
w

ic
h 

E
st

at
e 

or
 o

th
er

s.
  

65
01

72
3 

- 
00

00
 -

 G
ro

ts
po

t c
le

an
-

up
 in

 H
er

ne
 H

ill
 -

 Id
ea

 2
V

ill
ag

e

C
ar

 p
ar

k 
be

hi
nd

 1
2 

to
 2

4 
H

al
f 

M
oo

n 
La

ne
, D

ul
w

ic
h,

 S
E

23
 

9H
U

E
re

ct
 g

at
ed

 fe
nc

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ba
ck

 e
xt

en
si

on
s 

of
 th

e 
sh

op
s 

to
 

de
te

r 
A

S
B

 (
al

le
ge

d 
dr

ug
 d

ea
lin

g,
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 c
rim

in
al

 a
ct

iv
ity

, 
ur

in
at

in
g,

 fl
y-

tip
pi

ng
, r

ub
bi

sh
 d

is
po

sa
l e

tc
)

0

66
01

79
8 

- 
T

he
 B

el
ai

r 
B

io
di

ve
rs

ity
 

C
or

rid
or

V
ill

ag
e

B
el

ai
r 

P
ar

k'
s 

N
or

th
-E

as
te

rn
 

C
or

ne
r 

- 
be

si
de

 th
e 

fo
ot

pa
th

 
th

at
 r

un
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

la
ke

 
br

id
ge

 a
nd

 th
e 

pa
rk

 e
nt

ra
nc

e 
in

 G
al

le
ry

 R
oa

d 
be

si
de

 B
el

ai
r 

H
ou

se
. 

P
la

nt
in

g 
of

 n
at

iv
e 

sh
ru

b 
he

dg
er

ow
 a

nd
 w

ild
flo

w
er

 m
ix

 a
ro

un
d 

th
e 

pe
rim

et
er

 o
f t

he
 p

ar
k 

(in
cl

us
iv

e 
of

 3
-y

ea
r 

sp
ec

ia
lis

t 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 c

on
tr

ac
t)

 w
ith

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 v
ita

l h
ab

ita
ts

 a
nd

 
fo

od
 s

ou
rc

es
 to

 e
nd

an
ge

re
d 

sp
ec

ie
s 

of
 s

ta
g 

be
et

le
, b

um
bl

e 
be

e,
 b

ut
te

rf
ly

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 in

ve
rt

eb
ra

te
s,

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f 
at

tr
ac

tiv
e 

se
at

in
g 

fo
r 

pa
rk

 u
se

rs
,

   
   

   
   

   
 8

,0
00

 
Lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 p
la

nt
in

g 
to

 b
e 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d.

67
01

81
4 

- 
D

el
aw

yk
 C

om
m

un
ity

 
G

ar
de

n
V

ill
ag

e

A
t t

he
 r

ea
r 

of
 4

4 
D

el
aw

yk
 

C
re

sc
en

t a
nd

 s
id

e 
of

 4
1 

&
 4

2 
D

el
aw

yk
 C

re
sc

en
t

R
ep

la
ce

 th
e 

ol
d 

ro
se

 b
ed

 w
ith

 a
 n

ew
 c

om
m

un
ity

 g
ar

de
n 

w
he

re
 r

es
id

en
ts

 a
nd

 fa
m

ili
es

 c
an

 d
es

ig
n,

 p
la

nt
 a

nd
 lo

ok
 a

fte
r 

th
e 

ga
rd

en
 e

nc
ou

ra
gi

ng
 s

oc
ia

l c
oh

es
io

n 
as

 w
el

l a
s 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
a 

gr
ee

ne
r 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t.

   
   

   
   

   
   

 5
00

 

14



68

01
91

5 
- 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

of
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 fo
r 

12
7 

- 
47

 H
al

f 
M

oo
n 

La
ne

V
ill

ag
e

T
he

 s
ho

pp
in

g 
pa

ra
de

 
be

tw
ee

n 
12

7 
- 

14
7 

(in
cl

us
iv

e)
, H

al
f M

oo
n 

La
ne

, 
Lo

nd
on

 S
E

24
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
of

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t t

o 
12

7 
- 

14
7 

H
al

f M
oo

n 
La

ne
   

   
   

   
  2

6,
00

0 

A
w

ar
d 

is
 fo

r 
lig

ht
in

g 
an

d 
ha

ng
in

g 
ba

sk
et

s.
  A

dv
ic

e 
to

 b
e 

ta
ke

n 
fr

om
 

Li
gh

tin
g 

E
ng

in
ee

r 
on

 h
ei

gh
t o

f n
ew

 
co

lu
m

ns
 (

ex
is

tin
g 

to
 b

e 
re

m
ov

ed
).

  
T

he
 n

ew
 c

ol
um

ns
 to

 b
e 

sa
m

e 
st

yl
e 

as
 th

os
e 

at
 H

er
ne

 H
ill

 s
ho

pp
in

g 
pa

ra
de

.  

69
01

92
4 

- 
M

od
el

 A
llo

tm
en

t i
n 

D
ul

w
ic

h 
P

ar
k

V
ill

ag
e

R
os

eb
er

y 
Lo

dg
e 

in
 D

ul
w

ic
h 

P
ar

k
M

od
el

 A
llo

tm
en

t i
n 

D
ul

w
ic

h 
pa

rk
   

   
   

   
   

 4
,0

00
 

70
01

93
9 

&
 0

19
58

 -
 D

el
aw

yk
 

C
re

sc
en

t C
om

m
un

ity
 O

rc
ha

rd
V

ill
ag

e
D

al
aw

yk
 C

re
sc

en
t E

st
at

e,
 

H
er

ne
 H

ill
T

o 
gr

ow
 a

 c
om

m
un

ity
 o

rc
ha

rd
 b

y 
pl

an
tin

g 
fr

ui
t a

nd
 n

ut
 

be
ar

in
g 

tr
ee

s
   

   
   

   
   

 8
,0

00
 

71

01
97

2 
- 

T
he

 W
oo

dl
an

d 
w

al
k 

D
ul

w
ic

h 
P

ar
k 

S
ig

na
ge

 a
nd

 
no

tic
e 

bo
ar

ds
V

ill
ag

e
D

ul
w

ic
h 

P
ar

k 
pe

rim
et

er

S
ig

na
ge

 a
nd

 n
ot

ic
e 

bo
ar

ds
 a

ro
un

d 
th

e 
pe

rim
et

er
 o

f D
ul

w
ic

h 
P

ar
k 

to
 e

xp
la

in
 th

e 
na

tu
ra

l w
oo

dl
an

d 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
th

at
 h

as
 

re
su

lte
d 

in
 th

e 
ar

ea
 b

ei
ng

 le
ft 

un
di

st
ur

be
d 

an
d 

as
 a

 r
es

ul
t, 

th
e 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 s
pe

ci
es

 c
ou

nt
s 

of
 b

ird
s,

 p
la

nt
s 

an
d 

in
ve

rt
eb

ra
te

s.
 

   
   

   
   

   
 3

,0
00

 
A

w
ar

d 
is

 fo
r 

th
re

e 
bo

ar
ds

 to
 a

vo
id

 
ar

ea
 lo

ok
in

g 
cl

ut
te

re
d.

72
01

93
7 

- 
N

or
w

oo
d 

R
oa

d 
B

ik
e 

pa
rk

in
g 

an
d 

pl
an

tin
g 

pr
oj

ec
t

V
ill

ag
e

N
or

w
oo

d 
R

oa
d 

fr
om

 ju
nc

tio
n 

of
 C

ro
xt

ed
 R

oa
d 

to
 ju

nc
tio

n 
w

ith
 D

ul
w

ic
h 

R
oa

d,
 S

E
24

T
o 

in
st

al
l 7

 c
om

bi
ne

d 
bi

ke
 r

ac
k 

an
d 

pl
an

te
rs

 a
lo

ng
 th

e 
pa

ve
m

en
t i

n 
N

or
w

oo
d 

R
oa

d 
ou

ts
id

e 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
sh

op
s.

 
0

73
01

95
8 

- 
D

ul
w

ic
h 

P
ar

k 
- 

D
is

ab
le

d 
P

la
y 

E
qi

pm
en

t
V

ill
ag

e
D

ul
w

ic
h 

P
ar

k

T
w

o 
ye

ar
s 

ag
o,

 D
ul

w
ic

h 
pa

rk
 h

ad
 a

 d
is

ab
le

d 
ro

un
da

bo
ut

 
in

st
al

le
d.

 T
hi

s 
co

m
pl

im
en

ts
 th

e 
ex

ce
lle

nt
 w

or
k 

th
at

 L
on

do
n 

R
ec

um
be

nt
s 

do
es

 w
ith

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 g

ro
up

s 
vi

si
tin

g 
th

e 
D

ul
w

ic
h 

P
ar

k.
 A

no
th

er
 it

em
 o

f p
la

y 
eq

ui
pm

en
t w

ou
ld

 c
re

at
e 

an
 e

ve
n 

m
or

e 
at

tr
ac

tiv
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t f

or
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ith

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

to
 

vi
si

t t
he

 p
ar

k.
0

74
01

99
6 

- 
V

ill
ag

e 
W

ar
d 

C
rim

e 
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

F
un

d
V

ill
ag

e
V

ill
ag

e 
W

ar
d

V
ill

ag
e 

W
ar

d 
ha

s 
a 

bu
rg

la
ry

 r
at

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
la

st
 1

2 
m

on
th

s 
of

 
17

.3
6/

10
00

 r
es

id
en

ts
, t

he
 a

ve
ra

ge
 fo

r 
al

l L
on

do
n 

is
 

12
.8

5/
10

00
. T

he
 id

ea
 is

 to
 b

uy
 1

00
0 

pr
op

er
ty

 m
ar

ki
ng

 k
its

 
an

d 
di

st
rib

ut
e 

th
em

 v
ia

 th
e 

S
N

T
 a

nd
 c

om
m

un
ity

 w
ar

de
ns

. 
T

hi
s 

ha
s 

be
en

 d
on

e 
in

 e
as

t d
ul

w
ic

h 
an

d 
re

su
lte

d 
in

 a
 s

te
p 

de
cr

ea
se

 in
 b

ur
gl

ar
ie

s
0

75
02

02
2 

- 
U

rb
an

 O
rc

ha
rd

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t S
ch

em
e

V
ill

ag
e

C
or

ne
rs

 o
f L

yt
co

tt 
G

ro
ve

 a
nd

 
M

el
bo

ur
ne

 G
ro

ve
, S

E
22

S
ig

na
ge

 a
nd

 m
or

e 
pa

ln
tin

g 
fo

r 
th

e 
ur

ba
n 

or
ch

ar
d.

 P
ro

vi
de

 
ap

pl
es

 a
nd

 e
vi

or
nm

en
ta

l a
pp

re
ci

at
io

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
ar

ea
. T

he
 u

rb
an

 
or

ch
ar

d 
is

 a
 le

ad
in

g 
ed

ge
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 fo

od
 e

xp
er

im
en

t w
hi

ch
 

is
 s

et
tin

g 
a 

pr
ec

ed
en

t i
n 

Lo
nd

on
   

   
   

   
   

 1
,0

00
 

A
w

ar
d 

is
 fo

r 
tw

o 
m

or
e 

tr
ee

s 
an

d 
si

gn
ag

e.
  S

ig
na

ge
 to

 c
on

fo
rm

 to
 

S
ou

th
w

ar
k 

de
si

gn
 g

ui
de

 / 
sa

m
e 

ty
pe

 a
s 

pa
rk

 s
ig

ns
.  

 E
st

ab
lis

h 
if 

si
gn

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
w

al
l-m

ou
nt

ed
 o

r 
fr

ee
 

st
an

di
ng

.

76
02

02
4 

- 
Li

fe
 o

n 
th

e 
E

dg
e

V
ill

ag
e

G
re

en
 d

al
e 

H
ut

  
G

en
er

al
 s

up
pl

ie
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

pe
ns

io
ne

rs
 c

lu
b 

Li
fe

 o
n 

th
e 

E
dg

e
   

   
   

   
   

 1
,0

00
 

77
02

03
1 

- 
' D

ig
 th

e 
pa

rk
 ' 

D
ul

w
ic

h 
P

ar
k

V
ill

ag
e

D
ul

w
ic

h 
P

ar
k

'D
ig

 th
e 

pa
rk

' i
s 

a 
vo

lu
nt

ee
r 

[r
og

ra
m

m
e 

th
at

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ru

nn
in

g 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

ly
 fo

r 
th

e 
la

st
 2

 y
ea

rs
 in

 D
ul

w
ic

h 
P

ar
k 

do
in

g 
co

m
m

un
ity

 le
d 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 in
 th

e 
pa

rk
. T

hi
s 

gr
an

t w
ou

ld
 e

na
bl

e 
us

 to
 b

uy
 m

at
er

ia
ls

 a
nd

 p
la

nt
s 

fo
r 

ne
w

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
eg

 la
ke

 
pl

an
tin

g,
 b

ul
b 

di
sp

la
ys

   
   

   
   

   
 3

,0
00

 

78
02

03
3 

- 
N

or
w

oo
d 

R
oa

d 
P

ar
ad

e 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
V

ill
ag

e
N

or
w

oo
d 

R
oa

d,
 c

or
ne

r 
of

 
C

ro
xt

ed
 R

oa
d 

S
E

24
E

nl
ar

ge
 a

nd
 r

ai
se

 th
e 

tr
ee

pi
ts

 fo
r 

pl
an

tin
g.

 T
em

po
ra

ry
 fe

at
ur

e 
lig

ht
in

g 
pr

oj
ec

t.
   

   
   

   
   

 3
,0

00
 

A
w

ar
d 

is
 fo

r 
en

la
rg

in
g 

tr
ee

 p
its

 
on

ly
.  

Li
gh

tin
g 

w
ill

 b
e 

lo
ok

ed
 a

t a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f I

LR
E

 s
ch

em
e.

79
02

03
5 

- 
V

ill
ag

e 
T

re
e 

P
la

nt
in

g 
S

ch
em

e
V

ill
ag

e
P

la
yf

ie
ld

 C
re

sc
en

t, 
W

in
te

rb
ro

ok
, T

B
A

T
o 

pl
an

t t
re

e'
s 

as
 r

eq
ue

st
ed

 th
ro

ug
ht

ou
t V

ill
ag

e 
W

ar
d 

- 
P

la
yf

ie
ld

 c
re

s 
an

d 
W

in
te

rb
ro

ok
 r

eq
ue

st
ed

 to
 d

at
e.

 It
 w

ill
 m

ak
e 

it 
gr

ee
ne

r 
fil

lin
g 

in
 th

e 
ga

ps
 in

 e
xi

st
in

g 
av

en
ue

s 
an

d 
w

ill
 m

ak
e 

it 
gr

ee
ne

r 
by

 c
on

tin
ui

ng
 th

e 
on

-g
oi

ng
 tr

ee
 p

al
nt

in
g 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e

   
   

   
   

   
 3

,5
00

 

80

02
03

7 
- 

P
la

nt
er

 b
ox

es
 o

n 
C

en
tr

al
 Is

la
nd

 a
t N

or
th

 D
ul

w
ic

h 
S

ta
tio

n
V

ill
ag

e
N

or
th

 D
ul

w
ic

h 
S

ta
tio

n
In

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 fo
ur

 p
la

nt
er

 b
ox

es
 a

lo
ng

 th
e 

ce
nt

ra
l s

tr
ip

 o
f 

is
la

nd
 in

 fr
on

t o
f N

or
th

 D
ul

w
ic

h 
S

ta
tio

n
0

15



81
02

04
3 

- 
S

af
er

 A
cc

es
s 

at
 E

dg
e 

S
E

22
V

ill
ag

e
G

re
en

da
le

/ d
ev

en
te

r 
C

re
sc

en
t

T
o 

re
pl

ac
e 

th
e 

ga
llo

w
 g

at
e 

on
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
ro

ad
 to

 a
n 

au
to

m
at

ic
 s

ty
le

 w
ith

er
 a

s 
up

/d
ow

n 
ba

rr
ie

r 
or

 s
w

in
g 

ga
te

 
op

er
at

ed
 e

le
ct

ro
ni

ca
lly

 e
ith

er
 w

ith
 r

es
id

en
t k

ey
 c

ar
d 

or
 

za
pp

er
. G

al
lo

w
s 

ga
te

 lo
ca

te
d 

at
 G

re
en

da
le

 S
E

22
 s

er
vi

ce
 

ro
ad

 le
ad

s 
to

 r
es

id
en

ts
 g

ar
de

ns
 a

nd
 c

ar
 p

ar
ki

ng
 a

re
a.

 
C

ur
re

nt
ly

, r
es

id
en

ts
 h

av
e 

to
 g

et
 o

ut
 o

f t
he

ir 
ve

hi
cl

es
 to

 u
nl

oc
k 

th
e 

ga
te

 a
nd

 th
en

 g
et

 b
ac

k 
in

to
 th

ei
r 

ca
rs

 a
ga

in
 a

fte
r 

lo
ck

in
g 

th
e 

ga
te

. 
0

82
02

04
4 

- 
E

as
t D

ul
w

ic
h 

G
ro

ve
 

es
ta

te
 G

re
en

in
g 

U
p

V
ill

ag
e

E
as

t D
ul

w
ic

h 
G

ro
ve

 E
st

at
e

A
ll 

th
e 

cr
es

ce
nt

s 
on

 th
e 

es
ta

te
 r

eq
ui

re
 g

re
en

in
g 

up
. T

he
y 

ar
e 

su
rr

ou
nd

ed
 b

y 
to

o 
m

uc
h 

br
ic

k.
 

   
   

   
   

   
 1

,0
00

 

T
hi

s 
aw

ar
d 

is
 to

 c
ar

ry
 o

n 
w

ith
 

gr
ee

ni
ng

 w
or

ks
 -

 p
la

nt
 tr

ee
s 

in
 

H
ils

bo
ro

 C
re

sc
en

t g
ra

ss
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 
pl

an
tin

g

83
02

04
6 

- 
T

re
es

 in
 C

ou
rt

 L
an

e
V

ill
ag

e
C

ou
rt

 L
an

e 
&

 E
yn

el
la

 R
oa

d

P
la

nt
 1

0 
tr

ee
s 

in
 C

ou
rt

 la
ne

 a
nd

 E
yn

el
la

 R
oa

d.
 It

 w
ill

 c
re

at
e 

a 
gr

ee
ne

r 
m

or
e 

pl
ea

sa
nt

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t. 

T
he

 tr
ee

s 
w

ill
 h

el
p 

w
ith

 
po

llu
tio

n 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t
   

   
   

   
   

 4
,0

00
 

84
02

05
2 

- 
E

nt
ry

 tr
ea

tm
en

ts
 in

 
D

ul
w

ic
h 

V
ill

ag
e

V
ill

ag
e

A
t t

he
 s

ix
 in

te
rs

ec
tio

ns
 o

f 
D

ul
w

ic
h 

V
ill

ag
e 

an
d 

T
un

re
ry

 
R

oa
d 

w
ith

 B
ox

al
l R

oa
d,

 
A

ys
ga

rt
h 

R
oa

d 
an

d 
P

ic
kw

ic
k 

R
oa

d

T
he

 fo
ot

w
ay

s 
al

on
g 

th
e 

w
es

te
rn

 s
id

e 
of

 D
ul

w
ic

h 
V

ill
ag

e 
an

d 
th

e 
so

ut
he

rn
 s

id
e 

of
 T

ur
ne

y 
R

oa
d 

ar
e 

in
te

rr
up

te
d 

by
 th

e 
m

ou
th

s 
of

 th
re

e 
sh

or
t r

oa
ds

: B
ox

al
l R

oa
d,

 A
ys

ga
rt

h 
R

oa
d 

an
d 

P
ic

kw
ic

k 
R

oa
d.

 E
nt

ry
 tr

ea
tm

en
ts

 a
t b

ot
h 

en
ds

 o
f t

he
se

 th
re

e 
ro

ad
s 

w
ou

ld
 m

ak
e 

w
al

ki
ng

 a
lo

ng
 D

ul
w

ic
h 

V
ill

ag
e 

an
d 

T
ur

ne
y 

R
oa

d 
sa

fe
r 

an
d 

pl
ea

sa
nt

er
 a

nd
 w

ou
ld

 r
ei

nf
or

ce
 a

 2
0 

m
ph

 
re

gi
m

e 
in

 th
e 

th
re

e 
sh

or
t r

oa
ds

.
0

85

02
05

4 
- 

 Im
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
en

tr
an

ce
 to

 B
el

ai
r 

P
ar

k 
fr

om
 

th
e 

S
ou

th
 C

irc
ul

ar
V

ill
ag

e
O

pp
os

ite
 W

es
t D

ul
w

ic
h 

S
ta

tio
n

T
he

re
 is

 a
 n

ar
ro

w
 tr

ia
ng

le
 o

f l
an

d 
(2

m
 w

id
e 

at
 it

s 
so

ut
he

rn
 

ed
ge

 a
nd

 1
0m

 to
 it

s 
ap

ex
) 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

ar
ea

 u
se

d 
fo

r 
ca

r 
pa

rk
in

g 
an

d 
th

e 
en

tr
an

ce
 to

 th
e 

pa
rk

. C
ur

re
nt

ly
, i

t j
us

t 
co

nt
ai

ns
 a

 fe
w

 o
ld

 ty
re

s.
 If

 th
e 

us
e 

of
 th

is
 s

m
al

l s
tr

ip
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

ac
qu

ire
d,

 it
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

po
ss

ib
le

 to
 w

id
en

 a
nd

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

en
tr

an
ce

 to
 th

e 
pa

rk
.

0

86
R

ep
ai

r 
of

 d
ec

or
at

iv
e 

fo
un

ta
in

 in
 

m
em

or
y 

of
 D

r 
W

eb
st

er
V

ill
ag

e
R

ou
nd

ab
ou

t a
t s

ou
th

 e
nd

 o
f 

D
ul

w
ic

h 
V

ill
ag

e
W

at
er

 fo
un

ta
in

 r
eq

ui
re

s 
re

pa
ir

   
   

   
   

   
 2

,0
00

 

C
os

t t
o 

be
 c

on
fir

m
ed

.  
E

nq
ui

rie
s 

to
 

be
 m

ad
e 

as
 to

 r
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
nd

 r
un

ni
ng

 
co

st
s

87
M

or
e 

tr
ad

iti
on

al
 D

ul
w

ic
h 

w
hi

te
 

po
st

s 
an

d 
bl

ac
k 

ch
ai

ns
V

ill
ag

e
N

or
th

er
n 

en
d 

of
 C

ou
rt

 L
an

e
U

se
 n

ew
 m

at
er

ia
l p

os
ts

0

T
O

T
A

LS
   

   
   

   
32

9,
40

0 

16



P
ro

je
ct

 R
ef

N
am

e 
o

f 
O

rg
an

is
at

io
n

N
am

e 
o

f 
A

ct
iv

it
y

P
la

n
n

ed
 A

ct
iv

it
y

A
m

o
u

n
t 

re
q

u
es

te
d

£
C o l l

A
m

o
u

n
t 

A
w

ar
d

ed
 £

1

A
lb

an
y 

S
co

ut
 D

is
ct

ric
t

C
ou

nt
y 

F
un

 B
ou

nc
e

A
 fu

n 
da

y 
fo

r 
th

e 
G

re
at

er
 L

on
do

n 
S

ou
th

 S
co

ut
 C

ou
nt

y,
 

to
 s

ho
w

ca
se

 th
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 a
nd

 p
ot

en
tia

l a
du

lt 
su

pp
or

te
rs

 in
 

sc
ou

tin
g 

in
 S

ou
th

 L
on

do
n,

 a
nd

 to
 b

rin
g 

th
e 

co
un

ty
 

to
ge

th
er

 to
 b

ui
ld

 li
nk

s 
an

d 
ha

ve
 fu

n.

10
00

.0
0

91
6.

00

2
B

ar
ry

 A
re

a 
R

es
id

en
ts

' A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n

P
re

ve
nt

io
n 

of
 M

al
nu

tr
iti

on
 in

 
th

e 
E

ld
er

ly
 P

op
ul

at
io

n 
of

 E
as

t 
D

ul
w

ic
h

S
er

ie
s 

of
 w

or
ks

ho
ps

 a
im

ed
 a

t o
ld

er
 p

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
th

ei
r 

ca
re

rs
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 a
 h

ea
lth

ie
r 

di
et

 o
n 

a 
re

st
ric

te
d 

in
co

m
e.

  A
ls

o 
so

m
e 

w
el

fa
re

 b
en

ef
it 

ad
vi

ce
.

95
0.

00
60

0.
00

3

C
om

m
un

ity
 T

V
 T

ru
st

H
O

M
E

A
 o

ne
-d

ay
 w

or
ks

ho
p 

ev
en

t b
y 

C
T

V
T

 a
nd

 T
an

gl
ed

 F
ee

t 
T

he
at

re
 c

om
pa

ny
, w

ith
 y

ea
r 

6 
pu

pi
ls

 a
t G

oo
se

 G
re

en
 

P
rim

ar
y 

S
ch

oo
l, 

to
 c

re
at

e 
a 

m
ul

tim
ed

ia
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

to
 th

e 
sc

ho
ol

, f
ilm

ed
 b

y 
C

T
V

T
, o

n 
th

e 
th

em
e 

of
 h

om
e.

78
7.

50
60

0.
00

4
C

oo
l T

an
 A

rt
s

A
rt

 E
xh

ib
iti

on
A

rt
 E

xh
ib

iti
on

 a
t D

ul
w

ic
h 

P
ic

tu
re

 G
al

le
ry

, t
o 

ce
le

br
at

e 
W

or
ld

 M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 D
ay

10
00

.0
0

66
6.

00

5
C

re
at

iv
e 

P
ar

tn
er

s

A
fr

in
as

an
ce

A
n 

op
en

 a
ir 

fe
st

iv
al

 o
f A

fr
ic

an
 c

ul
tu

re
 th

at
 w

ill
 

ce
le

br
at

e 
th

e 
ca

pi
ta

l's
 A

fic
an

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

th
ey

 m
ak

e 
to

 th
e 

ec
on

om
ic

, 
so

ci
al

 a
nd

 c
ul

tu
ra

l l
ife

 o
f S

ou
th

w
ar

k 
an

d 
Lo

nd
on

 
th

ro
ug

h 
m

us
ic

, d
an

ce
 a

nd
 th

e 
ar

ts
.

10
00

.0
0

0.
00

6

C
ro

xt
ed

 E
st

at
e 

R
es

id
en

ts
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n

C
oa

ch
 T

rip
 to

 E
as

tb
ou

rn
e

H
ire

 o
f a

 c
oa

ch
 to

 ta
ke

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
pa

re
nt

s 
an

d 
pe

ns
io

ne
rs

 o
ut

 fo
r 

a 
da

y.
10

00
.0

0
10

00
.0

0

7
D

el
aw

yk
 R

es
id

en
ts

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

O
rg

an
is

at
io

n
W

or
ks

ho
ps

T
o 

or
ga

ni
se

 a
 s

er
ie

s 
of

 w
or

ks
ho

ps
 fo

r 
bo

th
 y

ou
ng

 a
nd

 
el

de
rly

 o
n 

th
e 

D
el

aw
yk

 C
re

sc
en

t, 
ai

m
ed

 a
t e

ac
h 

gr
ou

p,
 le

ar
ni

ng
 fr

om
 e

ac
h 

ot
he

rs
' e

xp
er

ie
nc

es
.

10
00

.0
0

10
00

.0
0

D
U

L
W

IC
H

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 F
U

N
D

 2
00

9-
10

 (
A

L
L

 A
P

P
L

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

)

17



8

D
ul

w
ic

h 
F

es
tiv

al
D

ul
w

ic
h 

F
es

tiv
al

A
n 

an
nu

al
 a

rt
s 

fe
st

iv
al

 , 
w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
es

 lo
ca

l p
eo

pl
e 

do
in

g 
C

ha
m

be
r 

D
an

ce
, C

hi
ld

re
n 

C
on

ce
rt

, P
oe

tr
y 

W
or

ks
ho

ps
, h

is
to

ric
 w

al
ks

, e
tc

.

50
0.

00
50

0.
00

9
D

ul
w

ic
h 

G
oi

ng
 G

re
en

er

W
or

ks
ho

ps
 fo

r 
'G

ro
w

 Y
ou

r 
O

w
n'

 , 
G

re
en

ta
lk

s 
an

d 
F

ilm
 

sc
re

en
in

gs

W
or

ks
ho

ps
 fo

r 
'G

ro
w

 Y
ou

r 
O

w
n'

 in
iti

at
iv

e,
 a

t t
he

 
m

od
el

 a
llo

tm
en

t i
n 

D
ul

w
ic

h 
P

ar
k,

 a
nd

 a
t t

he
 S

ec
re

t 
G

re
en

ho
us

e 
at

 T
he

 M
et

ho
di

st
 H

al
l; 

an
d 

G
re

en
ta

lk
s 

an
d 

F
ilm

 s
cr

ee
ni

ng
s,

 to
 h

el
p 

us
 m

ak
e 

gr
ee

ne
r 

lif
es

ty
le

 
ch

oi
ce

s.

60
0.

00
40

0.
00

10

D
ul

w
ic

h 
M

ila
n 

A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n

F
un

 d
ay

 o
ut

 a
t t

he
 s

ea
si

de

T
o 

ta
ke

 fa
m

ili
es

 o
ut

 to
 th

e 
se

as
id

e 
as

 a
 g

ro
up

 o
ut

in
g.

  
A

 5
2 

se
at

er
 c

oa
ch

 w
ill

 b
e 

hi
re

d,
 a

nd
 fr

ee
 r

ef
re

sh
m

en
ts

 
w

ill
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
.

98
5.

00
60

0.
00

11
D

ul
w

ic
h 

P
ar

k 
F

rie
nd

s
D

ul
w

ic
h 

P
ar

k 
F

ai
r 

20
10

F
un

 fo
r 

al
l a

ge
s 

- 
ev

er
yt

hi
ng

 fr
om

 d
og

 s
ho

w
 to

 
ju

gg
lin

g,
 li

ve
 m

us
ic

, s
te

am
 fa

ir,
 m

ar
ke

t s
ta

lls
 g

al
or

e 
an

d 
pl

en
ty

 o
f f

oo
d 

an
d 

dr
in

k.

25
00

.0
0

17
50

.0
0

12
D

ul
w

ic
h 

P
un

ja
bi

 C
om

m
un

ity
 C

en
tr

e

P
un

ja
bi

 H
is

to
ry

 -
 H

on
ou

r 
A

ll 
G

re
at

 M
at

ry
s 

(M
ah

aa
n 

S
ha

he
ed

i S
m

ag
am

)

D
ay

 v
is

it 
fo

r 
fa

m
ili

es
 in

 L
ou

gh
bo

ro
ug

h 
P

ar
k,

 E
as

t 
M

id
la

nd
s,

 m
ar

ki
ng

 th
e 

40
th

 A
nn

iv
er

sa
ry

 o
f P

un
ja

bi
 

M
at

ry
s

15
00

.0
0

0.
00

13
D

ul
w

ic
h 

W
oo

dc
ra

ft 
&

 P
la

yo
ut

P
la

yo
ut

 D
ul

w
ic

h 
P

ar
k 

P
ro

je
ct

T
ra

in
in

g 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
fo

r 
4-

6 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 (

ag
ed

 1
5-

18
) 

in
 p

la
yw

or
k 

an
d 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 1

 w
ee

k 
of

 
pl

ay
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 b
y 

th
e 

tr
ai

ne
es

 a
nd

 a
 w

or
ke

r 
fo

r 
lo

ca
l 

ch
ild

re
n 

in
 D

ul
w

ic
h 

P
ar

k.

10
00

.0
0

0.
00

14

D
riv

e4
Y

ou
th

W
or

ks
ho

ps
 a

nd
 Y

ou
th

 E
xp

o

T
o 

eq
ui

p 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 th

e 
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

an
d 

sk
ill

s 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 b

es
t o

ut
co

m
es

 a
nd

 a
ss

is
t t

he
ir 

co
m

m
un

ity
 th

ro
ug

h 
w

or
ks

ho
ps

 s
uc

h 
as

 li
fe

 s
ki

lls
, 

co
m

m
un

ity
 p

ro
je

ct
s,

 s
oc

ia
l e

ve
nt

s 
an

d 
ta

le
nt

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
 A

fte
r 

w
or

ks
ho

ps
, t

he
y 

w
ill

 p
re

se
nt

 th
ei

r 
ta

le
nt

s 
an

d 
ab

ili
tie

s 
at

 th
e 

Y
ou

th
 E

xp
o.

10
00

.0
0

0.
00

15
E

as
t D

ul
w

ic
h 

S
ay

 N
o 

to
 U

nw
an

te
d 

B
ag

s
Lo

ve
 F

oo
d 

H
at

e 
W

as
te

 in
 

E
as

t D
ul

w
ic

h

T
o 

as
si

st
 th

re
e 

lo
ca

l p
rim

ar
y 

sc
ho

ol
s 

in
 fo

od
 

co
m

po
st

in
g 

an
d 

pr
ep

ar
in

g 
a 

co
nt

ai
ne

r 
ga

rd
en

 b
ed

.  
F

un
di

ng
 r

eq
ue

st
ed

 fo
r 

co
nt

ai
ne

rs

10
50

.0
0

60
0.

00

18



16

E
m

in
en

ce
 P

ro
m

ot
io

ns
E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
F

irs
t A

id

W
e 

pl
an

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 a

 o
ne

 d
ay

 e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

H
S

E
 F

irs
t 

A
id

 C
ou

rs
e 

(a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 p

er
so

n 
at

 w
or

k)
 c

an
di

da
te

s 
w

ill
 

liv
e 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
D

ul
w

ic
h 

C
om

m
un

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
ar

ea
. T

hi
s 

qu
al

ifi
ca

tio
n 

w
ill

 h
el

p 
to

 k
ee

p 
ot

he
rs

 s
af

e 
an

d 
in

cr
ea

se
 

le
ve

ls
 o

f e
m

pl
oy

ab
ili

ty
.

10
00

.0
0

0.
00

17

F
rie

nd
s 

of
 G

oo
se

 G
re

en
C

on
tn

ue
d 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f 

F
rie

nd
s 

G
ro

up

B
ui

ld
in

g 
on

 r
ec

en
t a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
ts

, w
e 

w
an

t t
o 

de
liv

er
 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f o
ur

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

co
m

m
itt

ee
 m

ee
tin

gs
, w

eb
si

te
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
, 

ne
w

sl
et

te
rs

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 p

ub
lic

ity
 m

at
er

ia
ls

.

60
0.

00
0.

00

18
G

at
ew

ay
 C

om
m

un
ity

 P
ro

je
ct

F
am

ily
 F

un
 D

ay

F
am

ily
 fo

cu
se

d 
pr

oj
ec

t c
al

le
d 

LI
N

K
S

, w
ill

 b
rin

g 
fa

m
ili

es
 o

f d
iff

er
en

t g
en

er
at

io
ns

 to
ge

th
er

, t
o 

sh
ar

e 
th

ei
r 

ex
pe

rie
nc

es
 o

f t
he

ir 
ch

ild
ho

od
 th

ro
ug

h 
st

or
y 

te
lli

ng
, p

oe
m

s 
an

d 
pe

rs
on

al
 w

rit
in

g 
an

d 
di

sc
us

si
on

.  
T

he
re

 w
ill

 a
ls

o 
be

 a
 fa

m
ily

 fu
nd

ay
 a

nd
 p

ic
ni

c.
  I

t i
s 

ho
pe

d 
an

 e
xh

ib
iti

on
 s

ho
w

in
g 

ho
w

 fa
m

ili
es

 h
av

e 
ev

ol
ve

d 
ov

er
 ti

m
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

pu
t u

p.

80
0.

00
0.

00

19
G

oo
se

 G
re

en
 P

rim
ar

y 
S

ch
oo

l H
om

e 
S

ch
oo

l A
ss

oc
 (

al
so

 k
no

w
n 

as
 G

oo
se

 
G

re
en

 P
rim

ar
y 

S
ch

oo
l P

T
A

)

S
us

ta
in

ab
ili

ty
 A

w
ar

en
es

s 
P

ro
je

ct
 -

 R
eu

sa
bl

e 
B

ag
 

D
es

ig
n 

C
om

pe
tit

io
n

P
ro

du
ce

 a
nd

 d
is

tr
ib

ut
e 

a 
re

us
ab

le
 b

ag
 fo

r 
pa

re
nt

s,
 

ca
re

rs
, a

nd
 th

e 
w

id
er

 c
om

m
un

ity
.  

T
he

 b
ag

 w
ill

 fe
at

ur
e 

ak
ey

 im
ag

e,
 to

 b
e 

de
si

gn
ed

 b
y 

a 
sc

ho
ol

 p
up

il 
in

 a
 

co
m

pe
tit

io
n 

th
at

 w
ou

ld
 fo

rm
 a

 fo
ca

l a
ct

iv
ity

 a
t t

he
 

sc
ho

ol
 s

um
m

er
 fa

ir,
 to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
bo

th
 e

co
lo

gi
ca

l i
ss

ue
s 

an
d 

to
 r

ai
se

 th
e 

pr
of

ile
 o

f t
he

 lo
ca

l s
ch

oo
l.

10
00

.0
0

0.
00

20

H
er

ne
 H

ill
 F

or
um

B
ra

nd
in

g,
 C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
an

d 
P

ub
lic

M
ee

tin
gs

P
ub

lic
 m

ee
tin

g,
 S

at
ur

da
y 

dr
op

-in
 s

es
si

on
, t

o 
co

ns
ul

t 
w

ith
 r

es
id

en
ts

 a
nd

 la
un

ch
 H

er
ne

 H
ill

 B
ag

 a
nd

 a
re

a 
br

an
di

ng
.

10
00

.0
0

50
0.

00

21
K

E
T

R
A

F
am

ily
 F

un
 S

po
rt

s 
D

ay

H
ol

di
ng

 o
f a

 s
po

rt
s 

da
y 

fo
r 

al
l l

oc
al

 te
na

nt
s 

an
d 

re
si

de
nt

s,
 to

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 in

cl
us

io
n 

an
d 

so
ci

al
is

at
io

n 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

sp
ec

tr
um

.  
T

o 
ho

ld
 fu

n 
sp

or
tin

g 
ac

tiv
iti

es
, 

to
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 e
xe

rc
is

e 
an

d 
w

el
l-b

ei
ng

.

10
00

.0
0

10
00

.0
0

22
Li

ve
ly

 M
in

ds
 C

lu
b

A
 s

er
ie

s 
of

 ta
lk

s 
fo

r 
50

+ 
in

 
th

e 
lo

ca
l D

ul
w

ic
h 

co
m

m
un

ity

G
ue

st
 s

pe
ak

er
s 

to
 ta

lk
 o

n 
a 

w
id

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

ub
je

ct
s,

 
bo

th
 e

du
ca

tio
na

l a
nd

 e
nt

er
ta

in
in

g.
10

00
.0

0
66

6.
00

23

M
C

S
A

S
-H

ea
rt

s 
of

 L
ov

e
Y

ou
th

 S
tr

ee
t G

ra
ffi

ti 
A

rt
s 

on
 

C
an

va
s 

H
ow

Y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e,
 1

1-
19

, f
ill

in
g 

th
re

e 
60

x2
 c

an
va

s 
di

sp
la

ys
 p

la
ce

d 
on

 a
 w

al
l o

r 
fe

nc
e,

 to
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 

th
ei

r 
ar

tis
tic

 s
ki

lls
 a

nd
 c

re
at

iv
ity

, i
n 

or
de

r 
to

 c
ou

nt
er

 
vi

ol
en

ce
 a

nd
 b

or
ed

om
.  

S
om

e 
of

 th
em

 w
ill

 s
ho

w
 th

ei
r 

su
pp

or
t w

ith
 d

an
ci

ng
 a

nd
 s

in
gi

ng
.

99
9.

98
0.

00

24
M

en
s'

 H
ea

lth
M

en
s'

 H
ea

lth

B
y 

en
ga

gi
ng

 th
e 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

ity
 in

 o
ur

 w
or

ks
ho

ps
 w

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
gi

vi
ng

 th
em

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t d
ie

t a
nd

 o
th

er
 

he
al

th
 is

su
es

.

90
0.

00
0.

00

19



25

N
ot

e-
O

rio
us

C
om

m
un

ity
 C

ho
ir

A
 c

om
m

un
ity

 c
ho

ir,
 w

hi
ch

 m
ee

ts
 e

ac
h 

M
on

da
y 

fo
r 

10
-

w
ee

k 
bl

oc
ks

.  
W

e 
re

he
ar

se
 a

nd
 p

ut
 o

n 
a 

fr
ee

 c
on

ce
rt

 
at

 th
e 

en
d 

of
 e

ac
h 

se
as

on
.  

W
e 

ar
e 

in
cl

us
iv

e 
of

 a
ll 

ab
ili

tie
s 

an
d 

ba
ck

gr
ou

nd
s,

 a
nd

 a
re

 fu
lly

 s
ub

sc
rib

ed
 

w
ith

 a
 w

ai
tin

g 
lis

t. 
 

13
00

.0
0

0.
00

26
P

io
ne

er
 A

fr
ic

an
 C

ar
ib

be
an

 O
ve

r 
50

's
 

G
ro

up
S

um
m

er
 B

A
R

-B
-Q

A
 s

um
m

er
 b

ar
be

qu
e,

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
on

 fr
om

 o
ur

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

 c
om

m
un

ity
 e

ve
nt

s,
 w

ith
 m

us
ic

al
 

en
te

rt
ai

nm
en

t, 
tr

ad
iti

on
al

 fo
od

 a
nd

 r
ef

re
sh

m
en

ts
 fo

r 
al

l 
ag

es
, f

or
 a

bo
ut

 1
20

 p
eo

pl
e.

10
00

.0
0

60
0.

00

27
S

ou
th

 L
on

do
n 

W
om

en
 A

rt
is

ts

P
er

so
na

l &
 P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t T
al

ks
 fo

r 
W

om
en

 A
rt

is
ts

A
 s

er
ie

s 
of

 ta
lk

s 
di

sc
us

si
ng

 th
re

e 
ke

y 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ta
l 

ar
ea

s:
 p

er
so

na
l a

nd
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

an
d 

ar
tis

tic
 p

ra
ct

ic
e.

  W
e 

ai
m

 to
 b

en
ef

it 
ou

r 
di

ve
rs

e 
al

l 
fe

m
al

e 
m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
- 

a 
co

m
m

un
ity

 o
f e

m
er

ge
nt

 m
id

-
ca

re
er

 a
nd

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

ar
tis

ts
.

12
96

.0
0

43
5.

00

28
S

t S
te

ph
en

's
 S

oc
ia

l C
om

m
itt

ee

A
nn

ua
l F

un
 D

ay
 a

nd
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 C

on
ce

rt
 o

f S
. 

A
m

er
ic

an
 m

us
ic

F
un

 d
ay

 fo
r 

th
e 

ch
ild

re
n 

of
 S

ou
th

 D
ul

w
ic

h,
 e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 
th

e 
K

in
gs

w
oo

d 
E

st
at

e.
  H

ol
di

ng
 o

f a
 c

on
ce

rt
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f 
ou

r 
m

ul
ti-

cu
ltu

ra
l p

ro
gr

am
m

e.
.  

H
an

ds
 o

n 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 fo

r 
th

e 
ch

ild
re

n 
to

 tr
y 

m
us

ic
al

 
in

st
ru

m
en

ts
.

10
00

.0
0

10
00

.0
0

29
T

he
 B

re
ad

 o
f L

ife
 F

ai
r 

T
ra

de
 C

en
tr

e

K
id

s 
A

rt
s 

C
al

en
da

r
A

rt
cl

ub
 a

nd
 w

or
ks

ho
p 

fo
r 

lo
ca

l c
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ho
se

 a
rt

w
or

k 
w

ill
 b

e 
en

te
re

d 
in

to
 a

 c
om

pe
tit

io
n,

 th
e 

w
in

ne
rs

 o
f 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 in

 a
 c

al
en

da
r.

60
0.

00
60

0.
00

30
T

he
 F

rie
nd

s 
of

 A
th

ol
 H

ou
se

F
un

 D
ay

 S
un

da
y

F
un

 d
ay

 fo
r 

th
e 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

ity
, w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 in
cl

ud
e 

a 
ch

ild
re

n'
s 

co
rn

er
, s

ta
lls

, g
am

es
 a

nd
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 fo
r 

al
l 

ag
es

, B
B

Q
, l

oc
al

 m
us

ic
 b

an
ds

, d
an

ce
 g

ro
up

s 
an

d 
pe

rf
or

m
er

s,
 r

af
fle

, i
ce

 c
re

am
 v

an
 a

nd
 p

os
si

bl
e 

D
ul

w
ic

h'
s 

go
t t

al
en

t c
om

pe
tit

io
n.

  J
o 

B
ra

nd
 a

s 
sp

ec
ia

l 
gu

es
t.

50
0.

00
50

0.
00

31
Y

ou
ng

 E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

Lo
nd

on
O

ur
 C

om
m

un
ity

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e

T
w

o 
D

ul
w

ic
h 

pr
im

ar
y 

sc
ho

ol
 c

la
ss

 p
up

ils
 le

ar
ni

ng
 h

ow
 

bu
si

ne
ss

 a
nd

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t w

or
k 

to
ge

th
er

 fo
r 

th
e 

go
od

 
of

 th
e 

w
ho

le
 c

om
m

un
ity

.  
T

he
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
fa

ci
lit

at
ed

 b
y 

vo
lu

nt
ee

rs
 w

ho
 li

ve
 o

r 
w

or
k 

in
 th

e 
lo

ca
l 

co
m

m
un

ity
, w

ho
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

fu
lly

 tr
ai

ne
d 

by
 Y

ou
ng

 
E

nt
er

pr
is

e 
Lo

nd
on

 s
ta

ff.
T

he
 v

ol
un

te
er

s 
w

ill
 th

en
 ta

ke
 

pu
pi

ls
 th

ro
ug

h 
a 

se
rie

s 
of

 d
is

cu
ss

io
ns

, a
ct

iv
iti

es
 a

nd
 

ga
m

es
.

90
0.

00
56

7.
00

32
Lo

rd
sh

ip
 L

an
e 

T
&

R
A

A
ug

us
t 0

9 
co

m
m

un
ity

 fu
n 

da
y

m
ob

ile
 fa

rm
, b

ou
nc

y 
ca

st
le

, s
ta

lls
 a

nd
 r

ef
re

sh
m

en
ts

, 
w

ith
 s

om
e 

20
0 

pe
op

le
 s

ta
nd

in
g 

to
 b

en
ef

it.
  

70
0.

00
50

0.
00

31
46

8.
48

15
00

0.
00

20



1

  

1. Introduction 

Each year, the council bids for money from Transport for London to deliver local transport 
improvements. The council’s transport planning team have attended Dulwich community 
council in previous years to get ideas for local transport improvements, however these have 
had to fit into Transport for London’s strict criteria in order to be considered and there was 
little opportunity to recognise local priorities.  

2. What is changing? 

Next financial year (2010/11), the system used to allocate this funding is fundamentally 
changing. Aimed at making the process fairer and less bureaucratic, the overall allocation for 
each London borough will now be decided by a formula based on criteria including 
population, road safety, accessibility and air quality. This means that the council, together 
with the community will have much more say in deciding what schemes get funded and the 
timescales for delivery.  

Under the new funding calculation, the council has been allocated the £3,349,000 for 
2010/11; the sum is likely to be similar over the next three years, allowing us to plan scheme 
delivery over multiple years. This does not include the maintenance or the area based 
scheme allocation. 

The three new programme areas are: 

• Corridors - These are schemes on key routes that address issues such as congestion, 
bus journey time and road safety  

• Neighbourhoods – Schemes to improve local areas, including traffic calming, public 
realm and reduction of street clutter 

• Smarter Travel – The promotion of active travel modes (walking and cycling) and 
public transport, including the involvement of schools and work places. 

June 2009 

www.southwark.gov.uk 

Changes to the funding of  
local transport improvements  

Briefing note prepared for Dulwich Community 
Council

Agenda Item 14
21



2

3. What does this mean for Dulwich Community Council? 

We have been working to identify potential projects for consideration by each of the 
community councils. These projects have been developed through the creation of an 
evidence base and the identification of those areas with the greatest need and/or opportunity 
for improvement. 

The following is a list of some of the evidence used for the Dulwich Community Council area: 

• Key walking and cycling routes 

• Community audit of Lordship Lane 

• Demographics (car ownership, levels of deprivation) 

• Collision and casualty information 

• Community project bank and Cleaner Greener Safer schemes 

• Correspondence  

• Input from community council meetings and local councillors 

• Dulwich Going Greener report from the Dulwich Society 

4. Proposed schemes for prioritisation 

From the evidence base we have identified five potential schemes within the Dulwich 
Community Council area. As funding is limited, delivery of these projects would depend on 
local and boroughwide priorities. 

4.1   Lordship Lane (From The Plough to Overhill Road)  

This proposal will address pedestrian accessibility and road safety along the length of 
Lordship Lane from The Plough to Overhill Road. It will take into account the 
recommendations made in the community street audit and provide better crossing facilities 
and improve safety at the junctions.  

4.2       Grove Vale  

This proposal will improve pedestrian accessibility, address vehicle speeds and improve the 
public realm, particularly around the station. It would include a review of crossings, including 
the dogleg crossing near Coplestone Road and a study into the provision of pedestrian 
facilities at the north end of Lordship Lane. The refurbishment of the rail bridge and 
improvements to lighting are also included as options.  

4.3   Crystal Palace Parade  

This is primarily a safety scheme and will address safety concerns at the mini roundabout 
and further south, near the bus station. A safety study has been carried out and the scheme 
would implement the recommendations contained in the report. In addition to this, the 
scheme would seek to improve access to the park and from the Kingswood estate.  

22



3

4.4   Gallery Road  

Gallery Road has a history of high vehicle speeds and the council has received a number of 
pieces of correspondence relating to pedestrian safety and severance. Pending approval for 
inclusion as pilot location, it is proposed to use an average speed camera to enforce a new 
20mph speed limit on this stretch of road. The scheme would also implement the 
recommendations contained within the Dulwich Going Greener report.    

4.5   Bus 42 extension  

The council is investigating whether the money could be used to fund an extension of the 
number 42 bus to Sainsbury’s.  Council officers are in the process of engaging TfL so that we 
can better understand the costs that would be incurred. The funding of this may mean that no 
other major schemes could be delivered if an ongoing commitment to paying for the 
extension of this service was made through this funding stream.  

5. Boroughwide initiatives 

In addition to these area specific proposals, we are also developing a package of measures 
that could be applied across the borough. For example, we are putting together proposals for 
the travel to school programme and for the provision of cycle training.  

6. Next steps 

The council is asking that the local community consider the proposed schemes and prioritise 
them in order of importance. This will help plan our delivery programme for the next three 
years. Officers will be attending Dulwich community council to discuss the process and go 
through the proposals in more details. We will be asking that people prioritise the proposed 
schemes and comment on any other priorities for consideration. 

7. Key dates 

May/June 2009 Officers identify possible transport schemes 

July 2009 Consultation with community councils and other key stakeholders

September 2009 Schemes presented to full executive for approval 

September 2009 Submit to TfL  

December 2009 TfL confirm Southwark schemes for 2010/11 

April 2010  Scheme development and/or delivery commences 

23



4

8. Contact  

For further information please contact 

Erica Blennerhassett 
Transport planning  
Regeneration and neighbourhoods 
erica.blennerhassett@southwark.gov.uk
020 7525 5462 

24



5

Figure 1 – Proposed scheme locations 

25



1

Introduction 

The local implementation plan (Lip) sets out how the council works with partners to coordinate and 
improve its transport infrastructure and services in the borough. Each council in London is required to 
prepare a Lip to detail how the authority will assist in delivering the Mayors Transport Strategy.   
Southwark’s Lip was adopted in 2006 and will be replaced with a new plan from 2011/12.  

The Lip annual progress report (Apr) is the process by which boroughs report on progress and apply 
for funding to Transport for London (TfL) to implement measures identified in the lip. This document 
describes significant changes to the funding allocation process for the year 2010/11. 

The new funding process aims to reduce bureaucracy and make the system more flexible, 
transparent, fair and equitable. The process will now be streamlined and much of the allocation 
boroughs receive will be calculated based on a formula that will replace the previous bidding process.  

The greater freedom these changes bring places greater responsibility on the council to identify and 
prioritise the transport improvements it wishes to see implemented in Southwark. 

The new funding process

In May 2009, TfL issued the new guidance for borough funding in 2010/11. This ‘transition’ year will 
see significant changes to the Lip funding process prior to the development of the second round of 
Lips due in 2011/12. 

Until now, the projects funded and therefore delivered in Southwark have been strictly regulated by 
TfL. Each year the council would bid for funds across a complex system of categories. An outcome of 
this was that there was little opportunity to respond to local needs and community concerns and 
subsequently requests that did not fit this rigid system were sometimes rejected.  

The new system for funding allocation recognises that, within the bounds of the Mayor of London’s 
overarching strategy, it is up to the boroughs to decide how they wish to target their funding. From 
this overall level of funding boroughs are then asked to put together a programme of projects and to 
submit these to TfL for confirmation. There will be more scope to develop projects over several years 
with confirmed funding.  

June 2009 

www.southwark.gov.uk 

Funding transport improvements – 
the new local implementation plan 
process.

An overview of the new Lip funding 
arrangements 

26



2

The new funding categories 

For 2010/11 there will be just five Lip funded programmes compared to more than 20 previously 
including; 

Maintenance and Bridges No change Boroughs receive an allocation commensurate with the 
condition of their principal roads and any bridges within 
their area. 

Area Based Schemes 
(large scale streetscape 
improvement projects) 

Minor change Schemes will continue to be submitted outside of the 
Lip process via the existing ‘step approach’, except for 
smaller schemes under £250,000 in total value where 
this will no longer be required. 

Corridors Major change Consolidation of previous categories into one 
programme. Focus on safety, traffic flows, buses, 
cycling and walking along key routes. Funding allocated 
by new formula. 

Neighbourhoods Major change Consolidation of previous categories into one 
programme. Focus on traffic speed, parking and better 
street design in local areas. Funding allocated by new 
formula. 

Smarter Travel Major change Consolidation of previous categories into one 
programme. Focus on travel to schools, hospitals and 
businesses as well as wider road safety education, 
training and promotional activities. Funding allocated by 
new formula. 

The new funding formula 

For the Corridors, Neighbourhoods and Smarter travel programmes, a formula has been applied to 
the available budget across London. The essential criteria contained in the formula are: bus 
performance, road casualties, vehicle delay, CO2 emissions, population and indices of multiple 
deprivation. In addition, each borough has been allocated £100K discretionary funding to spend as it 
sees fit. 

The result of this calculation is the following allocation for Southwark for 2010/11: 

Corridors   £1,615K 
Neighbourhoods  £1,261K 
Smarter Travel  £373K 
Discretionary funding  £100K 
Area based schemes   TBC 
Maintenance and bridges TBC 

Total     £3,349k 

Now that the funding and guidance has been confirmed, boroughs will develop ‘packages’ of 
schemes that match the allocation provided in the above programmes. The total value of these 
packages may not exceed the overall TfL allocation for the council, but the amount in each 
programme may be increased or decreased by up to 20%. 

27



3

The approval procedure 

Although the process of bidding for funds has been discontinued, the council is still required to submit 
the projects or ‘packages’ of work it chooses to take forward to TfL for ‘confirmation’. Each package 
must demonstrate how it meets or deviates from the Mayor’s transport strategy (statement of intent 
until the new strategy is published).  Each package must be costed for each year up to a maximum of 
3 years. 

Developing project proposals 

The new funding process provides an opportunity to ask the community which projects they wish to 
prioritise. These priorities will then need to be balanced against the need to deliver the council’s 
borough wide objectives before a final list of project packages is submitted to TfL.  

A brief summary of the development and consultation process is set out below: 

• The executive member for environment will oversee the project selection and prioritisation 
process. They will provide oversight of the whole process and approve the final scheme list prior 
to submission to the full executive. 

• Officers will use available data (collisions, traffic flows and speeds, walking and cycling routes, 
previous correspondence and project proposals such as project bank ideas, CGS submissions, 
community council requests etc) to identify possible schemes according to need / opportunity. 

• Each community council will be consulted and asked to give feedback on proposed schemes in 
their area as well as to suggest any other schemes that have not been covered. 

• Key external stakeholders and interest groups will be asked to give their views and proposals. 

• The full executive will be asked to ratify the final programme of projects prior to submission to TfL.   

Key dates 

May  TfL announces council funding for integrated transport programme 

May & June Officers identify possible transport schemes 

June & July Consultation with community councils 

June & July  Consultation with key stakeholders 

August  Scheme list developed in discussion with Executive member for the environment  

September Scheme list presented to Full executive for approval 

September Submit to TfL 

December TfL confirm Southwark schemes for 2010/11 

28



1

THE  DULWICH  SOCIETY 
Registered Charity No. 234192 

A local Plan for Dulwich: Proposals for Village ward,  
by Dulwich Going Greener and the Dulwich Society  

Objectives 

To make the ward cleaner, greener and safer; and 
To contribute to healthier living and the local and wider      
environment

Means 

1. Make it pleasanter and safer to walk rather than drive
For instance: 

(1) safer vehicle speeds: extend the 20 mph zones to cover the whole 
ward; and enforce the speed limit, using the new average speed 
cameras when available, starting with Gallery Road, and the hand-
held cameras described by the police at the Community Council 
meeting on September 22; 

(2) improve the quality of the footways, by concentrating repairs and 
renewals on them, and using paviours rather than asphalt, if 
necessary at the expense of the carriageways; 

(3) make it safe to walk along Gallery Road, by clearing back the 
vegetation; by the raised table and crossing suggested in 4(1)   
below 

(4) convert existing zebra crossings to the newly authorised wider 
“tiger” crossings where appropriate, for instance the crossing of 
College Road from Dulwich Park to the Picture Gallery; 

29



2

(5) extend the use of entry treatments (as at the North end of Stradella 
Road) so that pedestrians can walk more easily and safely; 

(6) give more footways the protection and visual enhancement of 
traditional Dulwich white posts and chains, for instance parts of the 
footways on Court Lane, Red Post Hill and the South Circular; 

(7) provide safer pedestrian crossings or refuges in the shopping 
areas, for instance at the Herne Hill end of Half Moon Lane; 

(8) widen footways, for instance on the west side of Dulwich Village; 
(9) narrow the mouths of roads with excessively wide splays to help 

pedestrians, especially those with walking difficulties (as already 
done for Woodwarde Road at Calton Avenue), for instance the 
outlet of Woodwarde Road onto Eynella Road and the outlet of 
Casino Avenue onto Herne Hill. 

(10) require new vehicle crossovers of footways to conform to 
Streetscape Design Guidance, to protect pedestrians, especially 
children; and restore footways at abandoned crossovers. 

(11) (jointly with Lambeth Council) implement the approved changes at 
Herne Hill junction, to improve pedestrian access to Brockwell Park 
and yield other benefits. (This is now in progress) 

(12) (jointly with East Dulwich ward) implement changes at the    
”Plough” junction as recommended in the Lordship Lane 
Community Street Audit  

2. Make it pleasanter and safer to cycle
           For instance 

(1) reinforce the proposed extended and better-enforced 20 mph speed 
limits by measures to protect cyclists at danger spots e.g. Dulwich 
Village; 

(2) advance stop lines for cyclists at all traffic signalised junctions; 
(3)  increase Sheffield racks for cycle parking across the ward, e.g. at 

the corner of Dulwich Village and Calton Avenue, outside the Post 
Office in Norwood Road, inside Dulwich Park. 

(4) reallocate road space in problem roads, e.g. Turney Road, to 
reduce speeds and help cyclists 

(5) a cycle hire scheme, as the London Mayor is doing in central 
London, and now proposes for outer boroughs. 

3. Make the area more permeable for walking and cycling
      For instance 

(1) open daytime access to the Velodrome site and the Kings College 
playing fields to provide a pedestrian and cycle route from opposite 
Giant Arches Road in Burbage Road to Dulwich Village (thus 
providing a safe route for pupils at the Infants School, Dulwich 
Hamlet School and, slightly further afield, Alleyns, JAGS and Herne 
Hill School);  

(2) provide a pedestrian gate at the western end of Dulwich Park to 
give convenient access during park opening times to the residents 
of Dekker, Dovercourt, Desenfans and other nearby roads including 
Court Lane; 

30



3

(3) make or improve cycle routes in Dulwich’s green areas, for instance 
a route from West Dulwich station northward beside the railway 
line, then turning into Turney Road, and thence through the sports 
fields to Giant Arches Road and thus to Burbage Road; 

(4) consider a traditional churchyard path along the south side of the 
old graveyard in line with tradition at old graveyards elsewhere 

(5) (in association with the Dulwich Estates) open the Gallery Road 
end of the path between College Road and Gallery Road (“Grove 
Lane”/”Lovers’ Lane”) to cycles, buggies and wheelchairs; (Now 
done)

(6)  (jointly with South Camberwell ward) re-open the tunnel under the 
railway connecting the proposed Community Hospital and the 
homes of East Dulwich with the schools, shops and homes north of 
the railway. 

  4. Additional measures to make it safe to walk and cycle to school
      For instance: 

(1) a raised pedestrian crossing of Gallery Road between DCPS 
Nursery and Belair Park and a raised table opposite the western 
end of Grove Lane; (Now done) 

(2) an all-pedestrian phase at the traffic signals at the junction of 
College Road and the South Circular; 

(3) shared use by pupils up to the age of 12 of the footway on the east 
side of Dulwich Village. 

5. Make public transport better
      For instance 

(1) continue to press for extension of the 42 bus route (which 
terminates at present in Red Post Hill) to Sainsbury’s Dog Kennel 
Hill, thus providing a direct connection between King’s College 
Hospital and the new Community Hospital in east Dulwich; 

(2) resist Southern’s intention to reduce services through North and 
East Dulwich stations from December 2008; (Now a fait accompli)

(3) put seats, shelters and indicators of when the next buses are due 
at all bus stops 

(4) (jointly with College ward) get Network Rail to make West Dulwich 
station more accessible to buggies, wheelchairs and cycles, by 
gently sloping ramps 

6. Reduce the need to own one or more cars, by pressing Southwark 
Council to conclude arrangements with a car club operator for a Dulwich 
Car Club 

     7. Make the street environment more inviting
     For instance 

(1) continue de-cluttering; 
(2) tree planting, for instance in the build-out at the junction of Village Way 

and Half Moon Lane. 
(3) enforce against car parking on footways.  

31



4

    8.  Promotion of walking, cycling and public transport
     For instance 

(1) (jointly with schools) support Walk to School Week, Walk on 
Wednesdays, provision of Sheffield rack cycle parking inside school 
premises, and other promotional initiatives; 

(2) (jointly with South Camberwell ward and Sainsbury’s) promote use 
of the newish path between Greendale and Sainsbury’s Dog Kennel 
Hill for “green shopping” from Dulwich Village and elsewhere, and 
give the path an official name. 

9. Make full use of the Velodrome site (both around and within the track) for 
sports, training, allotments and other uses consistent with its Metropolitan 
Open Land status. 

10.  Improve the design of College Road from College Gate of Dulwich Park to 
the South Circular (possibly by chicane-style layout) to improve car parking 
for the Gallery at peak times and slow traffic at other times. Widen the 
footpath outside Pickwick Cottage. 

November 11 2008 

32



 

 
 
 

1 

  

 
Item No.  
 
 

Classification: 
Open 

Date: 
07/07/09 

Meeting Name: 
Dulwich Community Council 
 

Report title: 
 

Local parking amendments (Q1) 

Ward(s) or groups 
affected: 
 

All wards within Dulwich Community Council 

From: 
 

Senior Engineer, Network Development 

 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 

 
1. It is recommended that the local parking schemes detailed in the appendices to 

this report are approved for implementation subject to the outcome of any 
necessary statutory procedures. 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
2. This report presents proposals for a number of local parking amendment schemes, 

which are matters reserved to Community Council for decision.    
 
3. The origins and reasons for the proposals are discussed in the main body of the 

report.  
 
KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION  
 
Glengarry Road (0910_Q1_003) 
 
4. The network development team received an email from Cllr Eckersley in March 

2009 asking if officers could review the current parking arrangements for short-
term parkers outside the parade of shops in Dulwich Grove. 

 
5. An officer carried out a site inspection at the location to identify a possible location 

for a time restricted free bay to create turnover in parking spaces. 
 
6. It was noted from the site inspection that it would not be possible to install a bay in 

Dulwich Grove due to the existing ‘at any time’ waiting restrictions and bus stop. 
However, it was noted that there is scope to install a bay in Glengarry Road by the 
junction of Dulwich Grove. 

 
7. It is therefore proposed to install a 10 meter time restricted free bay in Glengarry 

Road operating Mon – Fri, 8.30am – 6.30pm, with a maximum stay of 30 minutes 
(appendix 1).  

 
Gilkes Place (0910_Q1_008) 
 
8. The network development team received an email from a resident in March 2009 

concerning vehicle and pedestrian safety at the Gilkes Place and Dulwich Village 
junction.  The concern raised was that motorists were parking in Gilkes Place very 
close or at the junction with Dulwich Village resulting in pedestrians having to 
negotiate their way around parked cars. 

 

Agenda Item 15
33



 

 
 
 

2 

  

9. Parking adjacent to a dropped kerb (or raised carriageway) that has been installed 
to assist pedestrians crossing is a parking contravention in its own right and there 
is no requirement for the highway authority to indicate this with any road markings 
(yellow lines, etc.) 

 
10. In view of the preceding paragraph it would usual practice to alert the parking 

operations team to increase parking enforcement. However, there has also been a 
request made by the chemist in Dulwich Village for a destination blue badge 
(disabled) bay to assist those disabled customers wanting to visit. 

 
11. A site inspection was carried out by an engineer to look at both issues. 
 
12. It was noted that vehicles were parking close to the junction, obscuring pedestrian 

visibility. It was also noted that the current, informal arrangement of echelon 
parking would prevent a bay being installed directly outside the chemists. 

 
13. Based upon officer observations, it is proposed that a destination disabled bay be 

installed in Gilkes Place close to its junction with Dulwich Village (but at a sufficient 
distance so as not to obscure sight lines).  This bay would operate ‘at any time’ but 
would have a 4 hour maximum stay to encourage turnover of space to assist 
visitors – this maximum stay period is consistent for destination bays across 
Southwark (and many other London authorities). 

 
14. It is further recommended that ‘at any time’ waiting restrictions are installed in 

Gilkes Place at the junction of Dulwich Village.  These are considered necessary, 
despite the notes in paragraph 9, because of the proposed disabled bay.  It is 
envisaged that the presence of a designated parking bay would otherwise further 
encourage parking close or at the junction.  It would be necessary to install the 
waiting restriction on both sides of the road (for a distance that did not exceed the 
length of the entry table) to ensure clarity to the motorist. 

 
15. The proposals are detailed in appendix 2. 
 
Howletts Road (0910_Q1_031) 
 
16. The network development were contacted by Cllr Crookshank Hilton in April 2009, 

regarding the time restricted free bay located in Howletts Road, by the junction of 
Half Moon Lane. 

 
17. The bay falls within the Herne Hill (HH) CPZ and operates Mon – Fri, 8.30am – 

6.30pm, with a maximum stay of 30 minutes, creating a turnover in parking for the 
shops located on Half Moon Lane. 

 
18. At present the bay measures approximately 8 meters in length making it difficult to 

park two vehicles within the bay. 
 
19. It is therefore proposed to extend the bay by 2 meters, as shown in appendix 3, so 

as to provide sufficient space for two vehicles.  
 
Grove Vale (0910_Q1_062) 
 
20. It was brought to network development’s attention by parking operations, that 

vehicles were parking during the day on the single yellow line in Grove Vale, this 
was causing obstruction and congestion, particularly buses.  A site inspection 

34



 

 
 
 

3 

  

noted that upright signage for the single yellow line was missing, therefore making 
the restriction unenforceable in this non-CPZ area.   

 
21. An initial response would be for one of maintenance to reinstate the missing signs. 

However, the signs have been reported as missing on a considerable number of 
occasions and it is believed that this is deliberate vandalism to prevent 
enforcement taking place. Parking operations also reported that civil enforcement 
officers (CEOs) have previously reported ‘code red’ (a report that the CEO is 
experiencing a verbal or physical threat to their own safety) on a number of 
occasions. 

 
22. Officers have carried out a review of the existing restrictions and parking layout.  It 

is recommended that three (two on the Dulwich side) small lengths of single yellow 
lines (that operate 8.30-6.30 Mon-Sat) are upgraded to double yellow lines (that 
will operate at any time). This is recommended for two reasons: primarily to assist 
vehicular flow particularly buses on Grove Vale (part of Southwark’s strategic road 
network) but also to allow continued enforcement and prevent future sign theft as 
the double yellow lines do not need any upright sign.  

 
23. It is therefore proposed to install three sections of double yellow lines in Grove 

Vale as shown in appendix 4. 
 
Glengarry Road (0910_Q1_023) 
 
24. An application has been received by the network operations team for the 

installation of a disabled persons (blue badge) parking bay.   The applicant met the 
necessary criteria for an origin, disabled persons parking bay.  

 
25. The network development team has subsequently carried out a site visit to 

evaluate the network and ascertain the appropriate location for the disabled bay. 
 
26. It is recommended that this disabled bay be installed in Glengarry Road outside 

No.7 (appendix 5). 
 
Upland Road (0910_Q1_045) 
 
27. An application has been received by the network operations team for the 

installation of a disabled persons (blue badge) parking bay.   The applicant met the 
necessary criteria for an origin, disabled persons parking bay.  

 
28. The network development team has subsequently carried out a site visit to 

evaluate the network and ascertain the appropriate location for the disabled bay. 
 
29. It is recommended that this disabled bay be installed in Upland Road outside 

No.291 (appendix 6). 
 
Nutfield Road (0910_Q1_051) 
 
30. An application has been received by the network operations team for the 

installation of a disabled persons (blue badge) parking bay.   The applicant met the 
necessary criteria for an origin, disabled persons parking bay.  

 
31. The network development team has subsequently carried out a site visit to 

evaluate the network and ascertain the appropriate location for the disabled bay. 

35



 

 
 
 

4 

  

 
32. It is recommended that this disabled bay be installed in Nutfield Road outside No.6 

(appendix 7). 
 
Seeley Drive (0910_Q1_054) 
 
33. An application has been received by the network operations team for the 

installation of a disabled persons (blue badge) parking bay.   The applicant met the 
necessary criteria for an origin, disabled persons parking bay.  

 
34. The network development team has subsequently carried out a site visit to 

evaluate the network and ascertain the appropriate location for the disabled bay. 
 
35. It is recommended that this disabled bay be installed in Seeley Drive Road outside 

Sawyer House (appendix 8). 
 
 
Lordship Lane No. 429 (previously referred as 430) (0809_Q4_021) 
 
36. A previous report to Dulwich community council (3 June 2009) sought approval for 

a bay to be installed outside No. 431 Lordship Lane.  
 
37. At that meeting members deferred their decision asking that officers write 

explaining their rational for this disabled bay. 
 
38. Unfortunately a typographic error was made in the report’s title and should have 

read as “Lordship Lane No.429 (0809Q4021)” not “Lordship Lane No.430 
(0809Q4021)”. This report conflicted with the appended drawing that was issued at 
that meeting. 

 
39. It is noted that there is already a disabled bay outside the applicant’s property, 

No.429 (see appendix 9), this is in use by the neighboring property.  
 
40. Network development propose to install the new disabled bay adjacent to the 

existing disabled bay, outside No.431, as this the closest location to the applicants 
address.  

 
41. Please accept our apologies for any confusion on this issue and we recommend 

that you approve the bay for No. 429 Lordship Lane to be installed outside No. 431 
Lordship Lane, subject to statutory consultation. 

 
Lordship Lane No.473 (0809_Q4_019) 
 
42. A previous report to Dulwich community council (3 June 2009) sought approval for 

a bay to be installed on Lordship Lane opposite Sunderland Court. 
  
43. At that meeting members deferred their decision asking that officers investigate if 

the bay could be installed in Sunderland Court (a private road) and whether further 
negotiations could take place with the landowner. 

 
44. Discussions are still ongoing between the council, applicant and landowner in 

regard to this matter and further details will be provided to a future community 
council meeting. 

 

36



 

 
 
 

5 

  

POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
45. The recommendations contained within this report are consistent with the 

polices of the PEP and associated Local Implementation Plan (LIP) 
 
46. The proposals will support the council’s equalities and human rights policies and 

will promote social inclusion by:  
 

• providing improved access for emergency vehicles, refuge vehicles, residents 
and visitors; 

• improving sight lines for all road users; and  
• improving junction and pedestrian safety, especially those with limited mobility 

or visual impairment 
• provide origin and destination disabled bays to assist residents with mobility 

impairments 
 
COMMUNITY IMPACT STATEMENT 
 
47. The policies within the Parking and Enforcement Plan are upheld within this 

report have been subject to an Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA). 

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

48. All costs arising from implementing the proposals, as set out in the report, will be 
fully contained within the existing local parking amendment budget. 

 
CONSULTATION  
 
49. No informal consultation has been carried out. 
 
50. Should the community council approve the item, statutory consultation will take 

place as part of the making of the traffic management order.  A proposal notice will 
be erected in proximity to the site location and a press notice will be published in 
the Southwark News and London Gazette.  If there are objections a further report 
will be re-submitted to the community council for determination. 

 
51. The road network and parking manager has been consulted on the proposals and 

has no objections. 
 
52. No consultation or comment has been sought from the borough solicitor & 

secretary or the chief finance officer. 
 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

Background Papers Held At Contact 
Parking and Enforcement Plan Network development, 

Environment and 
Housing Department 

Tim Walker 
020 7525 2021 

 
 
 
 

37



 

 
 
 

6 

  

 
APPENDICES 
 

No. Title 
Appendix 1 Glengarry Road – Proposed time restricted free bay 
Appendix 2 Gilkes Place – Proposed “At Any Time” waiting restrictions and 

destination disabled bay 
Appendix 3 Howletts Road – Extension of time restricted free bay 
Appendix 4 Grove Vale – Proposed “At Any Time” waiting restrictions 
Appendix 5 Glengarry Road – Proposed disabled persons parking place 
Appendix 6 Upland Road - Proposed disabled persons parking place 
Appendix 7 Nutfield Road  - Proposed disabled persons parking place 
Appendix 8 Seeley Drive - Proposed disabled persons parking place 
Appendix 9 Lordship Lane – Proposed disabled persons parking place 
 
 
 
AUDIT TRAIL 
 

Lead Officer Tim Walker 
Report Author Paul Gellard 

Version 1.1 
Dated 17/6/09 

Key Decision? No 
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / EXECUTIVE 

MEMBER 
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments included 

Strategic Director for Legal and 
Democratic Services  

No No 

Finance Director No No 
Parking operations and 
development manager 

No No 

Network manager Yes No 
Parking and network 
management business unit 
manager 

Yes No 

Executive Member  No No 
Date final report sent to Constitutional/Community 
Council/Scrutiny Team 

17/6/09 

 

38



DISTRIBUTION LIST    MUNICIPAL YEAR 2009/10 
 

COUNCIL:  DULWICH COMMUNITY COUNCIL 
               NOTE:    Original held by Constitutional Support Unit; amendments to Beverley 

Olamijulo (Tel: 020 7525 7234)  
 

OPEN COPIES OPEN COPIES 
To all Members of the Community Council:  
Cllr Nick Vineall (Chair) 1 
Cllr Robin Crookshank Hilton (vice-Chair) 1 
Cllr Toby Eckersley 1 
Cllr James Barber 1 
Cllr Michelle Holford 1 
Cllr Kim Humphreys 1 
Cllr Jonathan Mitchell 1 
Cllr Richard Thomas 1 
Cllr Lewis Robinson 1 
 
 
Cllr Fiona Colley                                                       1 
 
Libraries 6 
Local Studies Library 1 
 
Press: 
Southwark News 1 
Dulwich Guardian 819 London Road Cheam Surrey1 
Paul Rhys, South London Press, 2-4 Leigham Court 
Road SW16 2PD 1 
 
MEMBERS OF PARLIAMENT 
Tessa Jowell M.P 1 
 
 
Constitutional Support Officer 60 
 
OTHERS 
Geoffrey Banister 
LBS Audit Manager 
2nd floor, 
Central House   
Town Hall                                                                 1 
 

 
External: 
 
Pat Tulloch 1 
Community Action Southwark  
8th Floor Hannibal House 
Elephant & Castle  
London SE1 6TE 
 
Valerie Shawcross                                              1 
GLA Building 
City Hall 
Queen's Walk 
London SE17 2AA 
 
 
TRADE UNIONS 
UNISON Southwark Branch 1 
Roy Fielding, GMB/APEX 1 
Mike Young TGWU/ACTS 1 
Tony O’Brien, UCATT                                              1 
 
TOTAL DISTRIBUTION 211 
 
Dated: 29 June 2009 
 
 


	Agenda
	Additional Information
	6 Minutes from the previous meeting
	14 Funding for transport improvements in Southwark - consultation with community councils   (8.15pm)
	Microsoft Word - New process overview Final
	Microsoft Word - agenda item - trans improv - comments from DSNov 12 2008 Paper

	15 Members' Decisions  (8.50pm)
	Distribution list

